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Financial Highlights

ES BZE12A31HLLFE
Results Year ended 31 December
20145 20134 25
2014 2013 Change
AR®BTR | AR®BTIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
WA Revenue 314,298 318,948 -1.5%
#E FE Operating profit 141,862 153,347 -7.5%
FTiSfiFA X Income tax expense 28,438 22,469 +26.6%
FRF)E Profit for the year 111,602 130,992 -14.8%
FRRQAPLER Earnings per share attributable to shareholders of

e EIRAF the Company for the year (expressed in RMB

(AERARBTIIT) per share)

—ERNES — Basic and diluted 1.1 1.36 -18.4%
EEORHARR B (TR AR Proposed final dividend (RMB per share) 0.15 _ n/a7~iE
B AR #M12A31H
Financial position As at 31 December

20145 20134F 25
2014 2013 Change
AR®BT | ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
BEE Total assets 818,720 769,806 +6.4%
mEEEFE Net current assets 470,738 359,432 +31.0%
BEERRHAE Total assets less current liabilities 642,472 497,984 +29.0%
EEE Total liabilities 176,248 271,822 -35.2%
EER Total equity 642,472 497,984 +29.0%
B EE M12A31A8
Financial statistics As at 31 December
20145 201345
2014 2013
MmENLE 2 Current ratio’ 3.7 2.3
BE & Gearing ratio? 11.7% 9.3%
FEREHH(H) Inventory turnover days (days)? 90.4 1956
B 5 el k18 58 B 2 ( B )* Trade receivables turnover days (days)* 294.4 2757
B 5 el sk 18 &8 B 2( A )5 Trade payables turnover days (days)® 14.9 34.4

1. MELL RSN RBEERTBEE 1. Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities

2. BELLRBSENEECEGREHEZ BRI 2. Gearing ratio = total borrowings/total equity x 100%
100%

3. FERAEHEESNFEEMBRERRA - B 3. Inventory turnover days = inventory balance/revenue for the year x 365 days
LA365K

4. B 5 e 8 [F B SRS A FE N ER R4S 8RR Uk 4. Trade receivables turnover days = trade receivables balance/revenue for the year x 365
A - BIELA365 K days

5. B SRKHIEEE B EESREMNRRESRKREK 5
A - BIELA365K

Trade payables turnover days = trade payables balance/revenue for the year x 365 days
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the
audited consolidated result of Wuxi Sunlit Science and Technology
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “"Group” or “Sunlit”) for the year ended 31 December 2014 (the
“Year").

The year of 2014 is a memorable year in the development history of
the Group. Following the successful listing on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
11 November 2014 (the "Listing Date"), the Group issued 32 million
shares and raised total proceeds of HK$247.0 million (equivalent to
RMB195.7 million). This was our most significant milestone. The
smooth listing not only created a capital market platform for the
Group to develop its business sustainably and opened a new era for
improvement of flexibility and selectivity of financing channel, but also
simultaneously enhanced the corporate brand and image and further
enhanced a strong strength to maintain the customers related to core
business and to acquire the projects related thereto.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The global economic activities were strengthened generally and the
world’'s economic recovery was sustained in 2014. In the People’s
Republic of China (the "PRC"), the government has proactively
adjusted the economic structure. The PRC real economy confronted a
lot of challenges in the course of comprehensively deepening reform
due to a greater downward pressure on the PRC economy and a
sustained slowdown in growth.

The PRC government introduced several policies and measures
on automobile industry in a concentrated way in 2014, which had
large impacts on automobile market and consumption demands. As
affected by the automobile industry and export policies, the growth of
domestic tyre industry slowed down in recent two years. In addition,
production overcapacity of steel cord industry and more competitive
market gave rise to sustained deduction in average selling price of
steel cord. The market environment and industry factors had impacts
on the Group’s performance to certain extent. The Group managed
to maintain stable and positive operation performance during the
Year by effectively controlling costs and significantly enhancing the
Group's management efficiency. In 2014, the Group recorded a net
profit of RMB111.6 million, decreased by 14.8% as compared with
last year. Subject to impacts from changes in the market environment
and China’s economic slowdown, the Group's product unit price
was dragged down and therefore the product sales composition has
been changed. During the Year, its gross profit declined by 17.8% to
RMB152.8 million, and the gross profit margin decreased from 58.3%
10 48.6%.
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

The Group is an integrated production solution provider of steel
wire products in the PRC. The Group is principally engaged in the
research and development, design, manufacturing, equipment supply,
installation, testing, repair and maintenance of production lines for
manufacturing steel wire products pursuant to customers’ specific
production requirements. The brass electroplating wire production line
is our major product. According to Frost & Sullivan, the Group was
the largest brass electroplating wire production line manufacturer in
the PRC in terms of revenue with a market share of 44.9% in 2013.
The Group places a strong emphasis on continuous research and
development and therefore has been maintaining the leading position
in innovation and constantly improving its products and production
process technology and quality. The Group's products can be adopted
in a number of downstream applications and industries such as
automotive, photovoltaic, agricultural machinery, coal mining, oil
pipeline and construction machinery. The vast applications of these
products reduce the adverse impact of periodic downturn in a single
industry sector.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the Group is optimistic. As the world is increasingly
attaching importance to environmental protection, the PRC
government will constantly strengthen environmental protection, which
will effectively push forward the development of the tyre industry
in the PRC toward green industrialization and promote steel cord
market expansion. The demand of steel cord will maintain ascending
development trend. In addition, the PRC’s National Development
and Reform Commission has commenced a lot of infrastructural
projects, including railways and highways, to deepen and implement
significant strategies such as “One Belt and One Road”, the Yangtze
River economic belt and integration of Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei.
The investment in road infrastructure construction will promote the
development of automobile transportation and therefore, promote the
increase in the number of automobiles owned by the PRC. The whole
photovoltaic industry presented a stable and good development in an
orderly way in 2014 and will continue to take a lead in the new energy
industry in the coming two years. The management will continue to
monitor the industry and review its business expansion plans regularly,
so as to take necessary measures in the Group's best interests.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS (Continued)

The Group believes that the increasing demands of downstream
industries for steel wire products will drive the increasing demands
for its products and services. Depending on production facilities and
capacity expansion, the Group believes that it can take a favorable
position to seize these opportunities. In addition, the Group has been
exploring appropriate opportunities and potential demands for its
products in the international market since 2012. As an industry leader,
the Group is confident that more support will be further acquired from
more domestic and foreign customers in the future. We will work
persistently towards the goal of becoming a world’s leading producer
of steel wire products so as to achieve better results, as well as to
maintain a leadership position in the PRC market.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my gratitude to our shareholders, business
partners, suppliers and customers for their loyal support, and to
all our engaged employees for their contributions to the Group's
development.

Zhang Degang
Chairman of the Board
Jiangsu, China

27 March 2015
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of a range
of equipment for manufacturing steel wire products. As an integrated
production solution provider of steel wire products in the PRC, the
activities of the Group include research and development, design,
manufacturing, equipment supply, installation, testing, repairs and
maintenance of production lines for manufacturing steel wire products.
Notwithstanding its manufacturing base, the Group is not a pure
manufacturer. The production equipment supplied by the Group are
customised to the customers’ specific requirements and production
needs. The Group also provides substantial support and services to
the customers, to help them design solutions to their manufacturing
problems and to integrate the equipment into their existing production
lines or processes. The Group has its own technical research and
development capabilities to design, research and develop almost
all equipment in the comprehensive set of production lines for
manufacturing steel wire products.

The Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 11 November 2014, raising total proceeds of HK$247.0
million (equivalent to RMB195.7 million). The successful listing
enabled the Company to enter into the international capital market to
ensure sufficient capital for future development.

The PRC government introduced several policies and measures
on automobile industry in a concentrated way in 2014, which had
large impacts on automobile market and consumption demands. As
affected by the automobile industry and export policies, the growth of
domestic tyre industry slowed down in the past two years. In addition,
production overcapacity of steel cord industry and more competitive
market gave rise to sustained deduction in average selling price of
steel cord. The market environment and industry factors had impacts
on the Group’s performance to certain extent. The Group managed
to maintain stable and positive operation performance during the
year by effectively controlling costs and significantly enhancing the
Group's management efficiency. In 2014, the Group recorded a net
profit of RMB111.6 million, declined by 14.8% as compared with last
year. Subject to impacts from changes in the market environment and
the economic slowdown in the PRC, the Group's product price was
dragged down and therefore the product sales composition has been
changed. During the Year, the Group's gross profit declined by 17.8%
to RMB152.8 million, and its gross profit margin decreased from
58.3% 10 48.6%.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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Bt % [0 B8 FINANCIAL REVIEW
PN Revenue
BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
ELEE AR%ETrR % ELgE ARKETT %
Unit(s) sold RMB'000 % Unit(s) sold RMB'000 %
TEIFE R E SR Brass electroplating wire
production lines 10 183,538 58.4 13 230,114 721
HithFEER Other production lines 13 20,432 6.5 10 9,453 3.0
B Standalone machines 592 91,769 29.2 178 41,564 13.0
ERRRM - TE0H Mould repairing equipment,
PSS component parts and accessories | N/AZ~7E 18,559 59 | NATEMA 37817 119
314,298 100.0 318,948 100.0

REEBU A F20134F AR #318,948,000
TCE T B A R 54,650,000 7T (3 49
1.5%)Z2014F AR #314,298,0007T °

BE=MMAEER - BIE =M%
EEZSHNEERAB0I3F AR
230,114,000 7T T & 20.2% = 2014 F A
R #%183,5638,000 7T ° %R B * & & E
RERZFPARTRUNEESREE A
2013FEM13ERM A E2014F810E - i
REBEIRNMGEERSINTRE RS
& BHTHEBMR0I3FEEARK
17,701,000 E A E2014FBHEARE
18,354,0007T * A It 2B 1K 84 85 & I A
BB o

HEHMEESR: EMEESAOESRA
i 2013 5F By A R # 9,453,000 JT 1 N
116.1% £ 2014 F 1 A K # 20,432,000
T BRNEFZERRERP AR R
W A G E H2013FMI10EE INE
2014FH)13E -

B BERAOEERABR2013FMAR
#41,564,000 7015 K 120.8% £ 2014F Y
AR#91,769,0007T - B EEER
EABESETEN FTHRMNERD
BRI - SERIBAHEEFFTIEM -

ﬂkff“’%ﬁ T R B (AR RRAE

TEMH REHREERAR2013FHA
E?fﬁszm7,0007%?[3%50.9%;%2014¢
B AR #18,5659,0007T & IET EH
RE R FRENREREESBTRD

EHERIEMBENERRAR | —F
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Our revenue slightly decreased by RMB4.7 million, or approximately
1.5%, from RMB318.9 million for 2013 to RMB314.3 million for 2014.

Brass electroplating wire production lines. Revenue from sales
of brass electroplating wire production lines decreased by 20.2%
from RMB230.1 million for 2013 to RMB183.5 million for 2014. The
decrease was mainly due to a decrease in the number of production
lines accepted by our customers after testing from 13 sets for 2013
to 10 sets for 2014, which was partially offset by the increase in
the average selling price from RMB17.7 million per set in 2013 to
RMB18.4 million per set in 2014 due to a different product mix within
our brass electroplating wire production lines.

Other production lines. Revenue from sales of other production lines
increased by 116.1% from RMB9.5 million for 2013 to RMB20.4
million for 2014. The increase was mainly due to an increase in
number of other production lines accepted by our customers after
testing from 10 sets for 2013 to 13 set for 2014.

Standalone machines. Revenue from sales of standalone machines
increased by 120.8% from RMB41.6 million for 2013 to RMB91.8
million for 2014. The increase was primarily due to an increase in sales
of double-twist stranding machines as a result of higher demand for
radial tyre cord in automotive industry.

Mould repairing equipment, component parts and accessories.
Revenue from sales of mould repairing equipment, component parts,
and accessories decreased by 50.9% from RMB37.8 million for
2013 to RMB18.6 million for 2014, primarily due to a decrease in the
equipment modification services provided to customers.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit decreased by 17.8% from RMB185.8 million for
2013 to RMB152.8 million for 2014. Our overall gross profit margin
decreased from 58.3% for 2013 to 48.6% for 2014 due to an increase
in sales of standalone machines which have a relatively lower gross
profit margin as compared to brass electroplating wire production
lines.

Other income

Our other income decreased by 42.2% from RMB20.3 million for
2013 to RMB11.7 million for 2014, primarily due to a decrease in VAT
refunds to one of our subsidiaries and reduced government subsidies.

Selling expenses

Our selling expenses increased by 5.8% from RMB5.2 million for 2013
to RMB5.5 million for 2014, primarily due to an increase in staff cost
for our business promotion, which was partially offset by a decrease
of transportation expenses.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses decreased by 53.3% from RMB47.6
million for 2013 to RMB22.2 million for 2014, primarily due to a net
reversal of impairment of receivables of RMB21.8 million resulting
from subsequent collection of long-aged trade receivables under
the continuing effort of the Group, which was partially offset by an
increase in listing-related expenses and research and development
expenses.

Other gains/(losses) — net

The Group recorded net other gains of RMB5.1 million in 2014,
compared with the net other losses of RMBO0.01 million in 2013. Other
gains mainly included the compensation gains of RMB5.0 million
received from customers who terminated the relevant purchase
contracts.

Finance (expense)/income - net

The Group recorded a net finance expense of RMB1.8 million in 2014,
compared with the net finance income of RMBO0.1 million in 2013. The
increase in finance expense was mainly due to more borrowings from
the bank for the purpose of developing our business.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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Income tax expense

Our income tax expense increased by 26.6% from RMB22.5 million
for 2013 to RMB28.4 million for 2014. Our effective tax rates (being
the ratio of our income tax expense to our profit before income tax)
increased from 14.6% for 2013 to 20.3% for 2014. The increase in
the effective tax rate is because one of our subsidiaries, Haisheng
Software, was subjected to a tax rate of 12.5% for 2014 while the
same was exempted from the income tax in 2013.

TRADE RECEIVABLES
Our trade receivables slightly increased by 5.2% from RMB240.9
million at the end of 2013 to RMB253.5 million at the end of 2014.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a receivable is impaired. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other finance reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults. The allowance of trade
receivables decreased from RMB45.2 million at the end of 2013 to
RMB23.3 million at the end of 2014 due to a net reversal of allowance
of RMB21.8 million during 2014. The Group enhanced internal control
measures since May 2013. We have agreed repayment schedule
with major debtors with long-aged trade receivables in late 2013
and the first half of 2014. The Group monitors the settlement of the
trade receivables on a monthly basis and takes immediate negotiation
measures if the settlement is far behind the expected schedules.
Most of the debtors who signed the repayment agreements have
generally settled the outstanding receivables in line with the agreed
timetable.
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INVENTORIES

Our inventories decreased by 54.0% from RMB170.9 million at the
end of 2013 to RMB78.7 million at the end of 2014 as a result of a
decrease on work in progress and finished goods.

The work in progress decreased from RMB78.3 million at the end
of 2013 to RMB39.2 million at the end of 2014, primarily due to a
decrease in the orders on hand for production lines at the year end.

The finished goods decreased from RMB70.5 million at the end of
2013 to RMB17.5 million at the end of 2014, primarily due to more
standalone machines being accepted by our customers during 2014.

TRADE PAYABLES

Our trade payables decreased by 57.2% from RMB30.1 million at the
end of 2013 to RMB12.9 million at the end of 2014, primarily due to a
decrease in our purchase of raw materials during the Year, in line with
a decrease in the balance of inventories as at 31 December 2014.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Cash position and fund available

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group maintained a
healthy liquidity position, with working capital being financed by our
operating cash flows, bank borrowings and initial public offering (“IPO")
proceeds.

As at 31 December 2014, the total cash and bank balances of the
Group were RMB249.7 million (31 December 2013: RMB108.3
million), comprising cash and cash equivalents of RMB239.6 million (31
December 2013: RMB82.7 million) and restricted cash of RMB10.1
million (31 December 2013: RMB25.6 million).

As at 31 December 2014, the current ratio of the Group was 3.7 (31
December 2013: 2.3).
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Borrowings

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had outstanding bank borrowings
of RMB75.3 million (31 December 2013: RMB46.5 million),
representing unsecured short-term bank borrowings of RMB50.0
million (31 December 2013: RMB30.0 million) and secured bank
borrowings of RMB25.3 million (31 December 2013: RMB16.5 million).
The secured bank borrowings were guaranteed by pledge of certain
land use rights of the Group. All bank borrowings were bearing floating
interest rates and were repayable within one year.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2014, the gearing ratio of the Group was
approximately 11.7% (31 December 2013: 9.3%).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

In 2014, the Group's capital expenditures amounted to RMB28.6
million (2013: RMB36.6 million) which has mainly related to the
construction of the new manufacturing facility located in Wuxi (the
“New Wuxi Facility”).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s capital commitments in relation
to the construction of New Wuxi Facility amounted to RMB19.4 million
(31 December 2013: RMB33.3 million).

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group operates only within the PRC and virtually all its revenues
and expenses are denominated and settled in RMB with the exception
of export sales (approximately 0.04% for the year ended 31 December
2014 and approximately 0.7% for the year ended 31 December
2013) that are denominated in USD. The Group has negligible foreign
exchange risk exposure and does not use any financial instrument for
hedging.

Arising from the Company’s listing on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, as at 31 December 2014, the cash and cash equivalents
dominated in HK$ was approximately RMB173,456,000 and the
other payable for listing related expenses dominated in HK$ was
approximately RMB5,259,000. If the exchange rate of HK$ increase/
decrease by 5% against the RMB with all other variable held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been approximately
RMB7,148,000 (2013: not applicable) higher/lower. Considering
the exchange rate of HK$ against RMB was relating stable, such
deposit will be transferred to domestic group entities and the other
payable will be settled soon, the Group did not take into any hedge
arrangement.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE IPO

The Company's ordinary shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on
11 November 2014. The net proceeds from the IPO after deduction
of underwriting commissions, fees and listing-related expenses
payables amounted to approximately HK$209.5 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB165.3 million). As at 31 December 2014, the
net proceeds from the IPO had not yet been utilised and have been
deposited into a bank account maintained by the Group.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 241 full time employees
(2013: 267), comprising 52 in management, finance and internal
audit (2013: 56), 33 in research and development (2013: 32), 124 in
technical application, quality control and manufacturing (2013: 147), 7
in procurement (2013: 7) and 25 in sales and marketing (2013: 25).

The Group has not experienced any disruption of its normal business
operations due to labour disputes or significant turnover of staff.
The Directors consider that the Group has maintained a very good
relationship with its staff.

Remuneration of employees including Directors’ emoluments and
all staff related costs for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
approximately RMB25.0 million (2013: RMB23.4 million).

The Group's remuneration and bonus policies are principally
determined with reference to the qualification, experience and
performance of individual employee.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2013: Nil).
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Degang (5&fEFl), aged 42, is our executive Director and
the Chairman of our Group. Mr. Zhang is one of the founders of our
Group. He is primarily responsible for our Group's postulating business
development plans and overseeing our Group's overall corporate
strategies. He is also the chairman of the nomination committee and
strategic committee. Mr. Zhang Degang is the brother of Mr. Zhang
Degiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua.

Mr. Zhang Degang obtained a bachelor's degree in computer science
and technology (e-business) (FHEMREIE BT (FF7) ) through
distance learning from Nanjing University (FRAZ) in March 2005.
In January 2013, Mr. Zhang was accredited by Bl HEEETAE T
EE B @ TANBEIELE (Chengjiang Road Office of the Chengjiang
Road Working Committee of the Communist Party of China*) with “Bf
E{ZEZR" (Star Entrepreneur®) for the year 2012. In April 2013, Mr.
Zhang was awarded with "M A — &8 EEZ" (Wuxi City 1 May
Labour Medal*) by #8542 T & (Wuxi City General Union*).

From June 1990 to June 1994, Mr. Zhang Degang worked in ;I [& §f4E
& (Jiangyin Steel Wire Factory*); from June 1994 to November 2003,
Mr. Zhang worked in China Bekaert Steel Cord Co., Ltd. (FE B <&
1N EESR B R A F)), where he gained considerable experience in the
steel wire industry. From October 2002 to April 2004, Mr. Zhang acted
as the supervisor of T2 = AT = HR A A (Jiangyin Sanzhi Gongkong
Company Limited*) (“Jiangyin Sanzhi”), which was principally
engaged in the installation, modification, repair and maintenance of
industrial automatic control equipment. From September 2005 to
July 2012, Mr. Zhang acted as the chairman, director and general
manager of JT & B &tk T2 B A7) (Jiangyin Beite Machinery and
Engineering Company Limited*), which specialised in the sale and
manufacture of industrial automatic equipment. In order to allow Mr.
Zhang to focus on the business of our Group, JT[& B ik TI2ER A
7] (Jiangyin Beite Machinery and Engineering Company Limited*) was
deregistered in July 2012.

In March 2006, Mr. Zhang Degang (through his spouse, Ms. Zhu
Yingxuan) established our Predecessor Company with Mr. Zhang
Degiang. He has been the director of Sanzhi Gongkong since April
2009 and he acted as the general manager of Sanzhi Gongkong from
April 2009 to December 2011; he has also been the director and
general manager of Jiangsu Sunlit since August 2009; the general
manager of Haisheng Software since July 2011 and its director since
December 2012; and the director of Wuxi Shangda since December
2011.
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Mr. ZHANG Degiang (5RfE58), aged 45, is our executive Director
and general manager. Mr. Zhang is also one of the founders of our
Group. He is primarily responsible for the day-to-day operations,
strategic development and management of our Group's business. Mr.
Zhang Degiang is also a member of the remuneration and appraisal
committee and strategic committee. Mr. Zhang Degiang is the brother
of Mr. Zhang Degang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua.

Mr. Zhang Deqgiang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in engineering
majoring in electronic precision machinery (B FfFZE#EM) from
Southeast University (BBFAKE) in July 1991. In August 1998, he
was also conferred by #EHH TP REBERTE(LTER
8 (Wuxi City Engineer Technology Intermediate Qualification
Socialisation Evaluation Committee*) with the qualification of engineer.
In January 2011, Mr. Zhang Degiang was recognised by E&HEA K
I (Zhoutie Town People’s Government*) and A Bt = & [FEEE
E= (Zhoutie Town Committee of the Communist Party of China*) as
the "BAE K (4&38) " (star factory director (manager)*) for the year
2010. He was also accredited with an “EFREMEK" (outstanding
non-public entrepreneur*) for two consecutive years in 2010 and 2011
by #4575 ARBUNT (Wuxi People’s Government*) and Fb B 2= % fw 45
™Z (Wuxi Municipal Committee of the Communist Party of China*).

From August 1991 to October 1995, Mr. Zhang Degiang worked in
Haiying Enterprise Group Company Limited (BB 2 EEERE(T
~7l), where he gained experience in designing machinery. From
October 1995 to April 2006, Mr. Zhang worked as the department
head of the production and technical department in Wuxi Murata
Electronics Company Limited (E#HFTHAEFAHRAF]), which was
principally engaged in the sale and manufacture of electronic products
and components. From April 2004 to November 2005, he acted as
the supervisor of Jiangyin Sanzhi, which was principally engaged in
the installation, modification, repair and maintenance of industrial
automatic control equipment.

In March 2006, Mr. Zhang Degiang founded our Predecessor Company
with Mr. Zhang Degang (through his spouse, Ms. Zhu Yingxuan).

From March 2006 to March 2011, Mr. Zhang Degiang was the director
of our Predecessor Company. In March 2011, Mr. Zhang Degiang took
up the role as the general manager of our Company, and he acted as
our executive Director since July 2012. From April 2009 to December
2011, Mr. Zhang Degiang acted as the director of Sanzhi Gongkong
and as its supervisor since December 2011. He has also been acting as
the supervisor of Jiangsu Sunlit since August 2009; the supervisor of
Haisheng Software since July 2011; and the general manager of Wuxi
Shangda since December 2011.
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Ms. ZHANG Jinghua (3R &%), aged 52, is our executive Director and
vice-general manager. Ms. Zhang is responsible for our Group's day-
to-day management. Ms. Zhang is the sister of Mr. Zhang Degang and
Mr. Zhang Degiang.

Ms. Zhang Jinghua graduated from high school in July 1978. In
February 2012 and February 2013, respectively, she was recognised by
R H£EETRTZ (Jiangyin Municipal Committee of the Communist
Party of China*) and /Tl ARBT (People’s Government of the
Jiangyin City*) as "{EF424X12 " (outstanding general manager®).

From March 1979 to November 1991, Ms. Zhang Jinghua worked as
a teacher in T[T EZEM £ (Jiangyin City Yaosai Secondary School*).
From October 1991 to October 2002, she worked in JTREHBREXHF
RN &l(Jiangyin Liantong Industrial Company Limited*). Ms. Zhang
obtained a qualification certificate of speciality and technology in
statistics (elementary level) approved and issued by the Ministry of
Personnel of the PRC (2 A R HEF1EI A E#f) and conferred by the
National Bureau of Statistics of the PRC (BZ #i5t/®) in October 1998.
From October 2002 to November 2005, she acted as the director
and manager of Jiangyin Sanzhi, which was principally engaged in
the installation, modification, repair and maintenance of industrial
automatic control equipment. From March 2004 to November 2009,
she acted as the director and general manager of JT[& =1F T {2 #H
ARA7R] (Jiangyin Sanjia Gongkong Machinery Company Limited?*),
which was principally engaged in the design, sale and manufacture
of industrial automation control system. In order to allow Ms. Zhang
to focus on the business of our Group, JTf& ={F TI5#H A R A 7
(Jiangyin Sanjia Gongkong Machinery Company Limited*) has been
deregistered in July 2012.

Ms. Zhang Jinghua joined our Group in April 2009 as the director of
Sanzhi Gongkong, and in December 2011, she was appointed as its
general manager. Since July 2012, she has acted as our vice-general
manager (F#24<¥E). In August 2013, she was appointed as our
executive Director.
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Non-Executive Director

Mr. GAO Feng (51&), aged 47, joined our Group in July 2012, and
was appointed as our non-executive Director. Mr. Gao is the general
partner of F/8TBEIREEEDL (BRA%) (Shanghai Yudao
Investment Management Centre (Limited Partnership)*) and /& ttiE
wWEERTD (BRAE) (Shanghai Shidao Investment Development
Centre (Limited Partnership)*), who are the general partner and limited
partner of Yudao Tiansui (one of our Pre-IPO Investors), respectively.
He is also a member of the audit committee.

Mr. Gao Feng graduated from Hangzhou University (f1/A&) (now
being part of Zhejiang University (31T A E2%)) with a bachelor's degree
in law in July 1989. He is a holder of PRC lawyer’s licence issued by
&M aAR (Shanghai City Ministry of Justice*) in January 1991.
From 1998 to 2013, Mr. Gao worked in various renowned law firms in
the PRC and is currently a partner of a law firm.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LIU Chaojian (2|F#), aged 49, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director in July 2012. He is also a member
of the audit committee, the chairman of the remuneration and
appraisal committee and a member of the strategic committee. Mr.
Liu is not involved in our Group's research and development activities.

Mr. Liu Chaojian graduated from FEZ 8 & EEZT (Xi'an Institute
of Metallurgy and Architecture*) (now known as Xi‘an University of
Architecture and Technology (FAZ 2 EERHH K E)) with a bachelor’s
degree in metallurgy in July 1987. In November 1998, he was
conferred by the State Bureau of Metallurgical Industry (BZ)6% T
2£/3) with the qualification of an advanced level engineer. Since July
1987, Mr. Liu has worked in the China Metallurgical Industry Planning
and Research Institute (/A€ T %7 2I#7tkr) and his current positions
are the deputy chief engineer and senior engineer at professor level.

From September 2010 to August 2013, Mr. Liu Chaojian acted as
the independent director of Ningxia Xinri Hengli Steel Wire Company
Limited (2B %7 A1 144 @D B2 7)) (Shanghai Stock Exchange
Stock Code: 600165).
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Mr. GAO Fuping (§E¥), aged 51, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director in August 2013. Mr. Gao is also a
member of the remuneration and appraisal committee and nomination
committee.

Mr. Gao Fuping obtained a master’'s degree in law from Shanxi
University (IUFAAER) in July 1993 and a doctor’'s degree in civil
commercial law (EFAE) from China University of Political Science
and Law (FERIBUAKE) in July 1998. In September 1995, Mr. Gao
was admitted as a qualified lawyer by the Ministry of Justice of the
PRC. In September 2001, he was recognised as “2001FEF+[HE
JtE3" (dawn scholar of the year 2001 (seventh year)) by F&H#HE
Z 8 € (Shanghai Education Committee*) and FTMHEHEESE
(Shanghai Educational Development Foundation®).

Since July 1998, Mr. Gao Fuping has lectured in East China University
of Political Science and Law (FEFREUAKES) and has served as lecturer,
deputy professor and professor. From June 2004 to February 2014,
Mr. Gao served as the dean of the Intellectual Property School (&1:%E
HEEART). Since March 2014, Mr. Gao has served as the dean of Bf &%
fi7EB% (Property Law Research Institute*) of East China University of
Political Science and Law (3£ 5 Bk AE2).

From June 2011 to March 2014, Mr. Gao Fuping acted as an
independent non-executive director of Founder Broadband Network
Service Company Limited (5 IEEAMBEIRGIKMD AR AT, a joint
stock company established in the PRC, which was converted into
Founder Broadband Network Services Co., Ltd. (5 FE#S#E4RIER
[R2a]) in April 2014.

Mr. HO Yuk Ming, Hugo ({A/&H), aged 43, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director in August 2013. Mr. Ho is also
the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the nomination
committee.

Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo graduated from Hong Kong Shue Yan College
(now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University) with an honours
diploma in accounting in July 1996. He was admitted as an associate
of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (now known as Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in March 2000 and is a
certified public accountant in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo has over 11 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and finance related matters. As of the Latest Practicable
Date, Mr. Ho has worked in the following companies listed on the

N EMER Stock Exchange:
£ R Bz 5
Name Stock Code Position Tenure
WEREEARANA 464 RS 2000475 A £2006477 A
Best Wide Group Limited (B RA20015 11 BRRIE) accounting manager May 2000 to July 2006
(delisted in November 2001)
BIREA EREREMR AR (R 254 WITES 2004473 3 2004479 A
R AR R A RSB AR AR executive director March 2004 to September 2004
National United Resources Holdings Limited
(formerly known as eCyberChina Holdings B RE 20044F3 8 £2004512 8
Limited at the material time) financial controller March 2004 to December 2004
EREEEARA B (R AR 82 WITES 200541 A E200642 A
A= LR EEERAR) executive director January 2005 to February 2006
V1 Group Limited (formerly known as Yanion
International Holdings Limited at the material time) BEEGEHAN 20054F4 A 200643 A
qualified accountant April 2005 to March 2006
BeREEAR LR 467 RS 2006579 5 £ 2010473 A
United Energy Group Limited accounting manager September 2006 to March 2010
NEIME 20084F4 B £201042 8
company secretary April 2008 to February 2010
RN RER RO BR AR 8301 RAEME 201347 A £201492 A 28H
Shenzhen Mingwah Aohan High Technology company secretary July 2013 to 28 February 2014
Corporation Limited
ISR AR A A 2212 UHEERARWE  2014FARERA
Future Bright Mining Holdings Limited CFO & company secretary April 2014 to present
ENBENEERRNBR AR 6866 BIUIERITES 01454 AEH AT
Zuoli Kochuang Micro-finance Company Limited Independent April 2014 to present

non-executive director

RIB R A E2010F4 A E2014F2 A
LT EFRESREEBEERER AR
(AEARCEARAR)NGTLE -
E20125F10 B £ E 201452 A [E N3 8
RHPEEFESER QRN IELRE o

From April 2010 to February 2014, Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo has also
acted as the accounting manager of Carlico International Group
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Kinco Enterprises Limited). Mr.
Ho has also acted as the financial controller of Great China Brokerage

Limited on a part-time basis from October 2012 to February 2014.
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SUPERVISORS

Mr. PENG Jiashan (¥01L), aged 51, was appointed as our
Supervisor as a shareholder representative with effect from 15 August
2014. Mr. Peng graduated from Jiangsu University (L&A £2) majoring
in mechanical and electronic engineering (#4#E F L12) in July 2002.
Mr. Peng received the qualification of engineer (L2EH) from &5 A
=3 (Wuxi City Personnel Bureau*) in September 2003.

From July 1988 to September 1991, Mr. Peng Jiashan worked in
MM BLEERL (Wuxi Institute of Machinery Manufacturing,
currently known as Wuxi School of Technology ({5 5 2 F i1 22 65%)) as
an internship tutor (B & $g&EEAM). From September 1991 to August
2005, Mr. Peng worked in JIfa T35 @k T2 (Jiangyin City Transport
Workers School*) as a teacher. Since August 2005 till now, Mr. Peng
has worked in JTE& TR ZERITHE F 0 (Jiangsu Provincial
Jiangyin Central School of Vocational Technology Education*, currently
known as ST# &I EEE 24 (Jiangsu Provincial Jiangyin
Secondary Professional School*)) as a teacher. Mr. Peng has been
granted jointly by F IR EBZEZE® (Jiangyin City Transport
Bureau Commission*) and Jiangyin City Transport Bureau the title of
S EE (TE) % (advanced (working) producer*) in February 2000
and January 2001, respectively.

Ms. WEI Yi (f&2E), aged 45, was appointed as our Supervisor as a
shareholder representative with effect from 15 August 2014. Ms. Wei
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in engineering majoring in electronic
precision machinery (£ 7452 #4) from Southeast University (RE
K2 in July 1991. From August 1996 to July 1999, Ms. Wei studied
Modern Financial Accounting courses at Xidian University (A% &
FRIEAE) and graduated from Xidian University in July 1997. Ms.
Wei received the certificate of accounting professional issued by the
Financial Department of Shaanxi Province (Bk75°& BT B EE) in April 2003.

After graduating from Southeast University, Ms. Wei once worked as
an engineer in FE A RFNE 4212 E)E0 (General Logistics Department
of the People’s Liberation Army*). From January 2005 to December
2008, Ms. Wei worked as the chief financial officer at PrFE4T £5BIEH
R /A Al(Shaanxi Red Star Boiler Company Limited*). Since May 2009
till now, Ms. Wei has worked as the deputy general manager of £2i&
BRI OFII) BBRAE] (Zhuo Sui Electronic Science and Technology
(Shenzhen) Company Limited®).
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Ms. YANG Jinghua (&), aged 33, was appointed as our
Supervisor as the employee representative with effect from July 2012.
Ms. Yang graduated with a major in business administration (modern
corporate administration) from A5 Z#EE 15 K Z (China Central Radio
and TV University*) in May 2006. From July 2000 to June 2006, she
worked in Wuxi Alps Electronic Company Limited ({5 R E S
FAFRAT]) and her last position was training officer. From June 2006
to February 2007, she worked in Nippon Express (China) Company
Limited (RFEEEHREER A RESHH AT (now known as HiBE]
R (R E) BFE A R]), which was engaged in statistics work. Since
May 2009, Ms. Yang has worked in our Company on personnel related
work.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. MA Jinlong (55 #8%€), aged 38, joined our Group as our financial
controller in March 2012 and started to serve as the secretary of our
Board of Directors since July 2012.

Mr. Ma Jinlong graduated from Tianjin University (KZXEZ) in July
2003 majoring in business administration through distance learning.
He obtained a qualification certificate of speciality and technology in
accounting (intermediate level) approved and issued by the Ministry
of Personnel of the PRC (R ZE A R FEF1E A F5F) and conferred by the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC (2 A R A FNE BFEER) in May 2004,
Mr. Ma obtained a qualification certificate of speciality and technology
in audit (intermediate level) approved and authorised by the Ministry of
Human Resources and Social Security of the PRC (fh#E A R HAIE A
HE&E R &REER) and the National Audit Office of the PRC (1% A
RAEAMEZE:TE) in October 2008.

From November 1997 to April 1999, Mr. Ma worked as a general
officer in LR FHAKERREERAF (Shanghai Dongfang
Mingzhu Xingji Entertainment Company Limited*). From June 1999 to
October 2003, Mr. Ma Jinlong worked in the finance department of
HEGENL G A 7(Shanghai Hualun Printing and Dyeing Company
Limited*). From October 2003 to February 2008, Mr. Ma worked in _+
B FBENL B R A 7l(Shanghai Hubang Printing and Dyeing Company
Limited*) as finance manager, assistant to general manager and
marketing manager. From March 2008 to February 2012, he worked in
Shanghai Tofflon Science and Technology Company Limited ( E/88RF
BERHEAR D BIE A ®]) (Shenzhen Stock Exchange stock code: 300171)
as finance manager and financial controller.
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Mr. XU Weigang (#1&fl), aged 41, was appointed as the vice-
general manager of our Company in July 2012.

Mr. Xu graduated from Jiang Su Cheng Shi Xue Yuan (T &k M 2255%)
majoring in business administration in July 2012.

From 1994 to June 2004, Mr. Xu Weigang worked in China Bekaert
Steel Cord Co. Ltd. (FE B REBFHELFER A E]). From July 2004
to June 2006, he worked in Bekaert Technology and Engineering
(Jiangyin) Co. Ltd. (B REFHEM I OIf) AR A F]). From August
2007 to April 2008, he operated JIEeTEEER @K (Jiangyin City
Lingang Food Factory*), which was engaged in the business of
manufacturing and processing of dry-fried food. In May 2008, Mr.
Xu joined our Company as head of production department (£3%3
#f), and was promoted to vice-general manager (g|424X3E) in July
2012. He is responsible for the management and daily operation of
our factory sites, and plays an active role in the quality control of our
Company's products.

Mr. DENG Jianxing (87 8), aged 60, was appointed as the vice-
general manager of our Company in July 2012.

Mr. Deng was qualified by A& A R EEL (the Ministry
of Labour of the PRC*) as advanced level technician (&4 5A0) in
November 1998. From 1970 to 2005, he worked in Haiying Enterprise
Group Company Limited (BE(2EBERETL/AR]) as a technical
staff. From July 2005 to February 2009, Mr. Deng worked in Wuxi City

the head of technical department (F{lt3=%). In February 2009, Mr.
Deng joined our Company as the head of manufacturing department,
and was subsequently appointed as our vice-general manager (g|424&
#2) in July 2012.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. HO Wing Yan (fiI¥kfiX), aged 33, was appointed as the company
secretary of our Company on 16 August 2013. She graduated
from Hong Kong Baptist University (85 @ AX2) and obtained a
bachelor’s degree in business administration (applied economics) in
November 2004. She has also obtained a master degree of corporate
governance from The Open University of Hong Kong (&R X
&) in June 2009. She was admitted as an associate of The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries in November 2009. Ms. Ho joined
BMI Corporate Services Limited in July 2009 and is currently its
director. Ms. Ho has worked for several companies listed on the Stock
Exchange and has extensive experience in the company secretarial
field for listed companies. Ms. Ho is currently the company secretary

of the following companies listed on the Stock Exchange:

=g BRAD SR 2 1E58

Name Stock Code Position Tenure
NEEREEFRAR 8020 NEWmE MFNAZES
Chanceton Financial Group Limited company secretary December 2011 till now
B E (R BRR A A 8099 NEWmE WFTIRES
China Wood Optimization (Holding) Limited company secretary July 2012 till now
REFEERABRAR 1007 NGIE D= 010F4RES

(RIBIRM I EERERAR)
Daqing Dairy Holdings Limited

(formerly known as Global Dairy Holdings Limited)
RPEEERRDA
Great China Holdings Limited
IR EE AR AR
HL Technology Group Limited
ERERARDA
Huazhong Holdings Company Limited
PERARBAGREERNHERAR

(Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information

Industrial Company Limited*)

REBBRERAR

Winfoong International Limited

company secretary

April 2010 till now

141 RAME WI4EFBRZES
company secretary August 2014 till now
1087 RAIME 01057725
company secretary July 2010 till now
6830 RAIME WI13F2R %5
company secretary February 2013 till now
8205 RAIME 01052825

company secretary

63 NEME
company secretary

February 2010 till now

WIFLAES
April 2014 till now
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As Ms. Ho is supported by different designated teams of professional
staff within BMI Corporate Services Limited, she is confident that she
is able to allocate sufficient time and has professional resources to
perform her role as the company secretary of our Company.

Each of the senior management has not held any directorships in the
past three years in other public companies the securities of which are
listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the PRC and is domiciled in Hong
Kong and has its registered office and its principal place of business in
Hong Kong at 33rd Floor, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. The Group's principal place of business is in the PRC.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are research and development,
design, manufacture, equipment supply, installation, testing, repair
and maintenance of production lines for manufacturing steel wire
products in the PRC. The principal activities and other particulars of
the subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, aggregate sales to the
Group's largest and five largest customers accounted for 28.1% (2013:
24.0%) and 85.1% (2013: 59.9%), respectively, of the Group's total
revenue for the Year.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, aggregate purchases from
the Group's largest and five largest suppliers accounted for 11.8%
(2013: 11.9%) and 27.2% (2013: 25.8%), respectively, of the Group’s
total purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder of
the Company (who or which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any interest
in the group’s five largest customers, raw material suppliers and
subcontractors during the Year.

FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the latest four financial years is set out on page 128 of the annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 55 to 60 of the
annual report.

A discussion and analysis of the Group performance during the Year
and material factors underlying its results and financial position are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis section of this annual
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company during the Year are
set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2014, the distributable reserves of the Company
were RMB473.0 million (31 December 2013: RMB338.9 million).

DIVIDEND
On 15 August 2014, the Company declared a dividend of RMB1.25 per
ordinary share totalling RMB120.0 million to the shareholders of the
Company prior to the IPO. The dividends were fully paid prior to the
Listing Date.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board has proposed a
final dividend of RMBO0.15 per ordinary share (before tax) and totalling
RMB19.2 million (before tax) (the “2014 Final Dividends"), subject
to approval by the shareholders of the Company at the upcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 19 June 2015
(the "AGM"). Dividends payable to the holders of the Company's
domestic shares shall be paid in RMB, whereas dividends payable to
the holders of the Company’s H shares shall be paid in HK$. Dividends
on H share are also subject to PRC Withholding Income Tax. Detailed
plan of distribution will be separately announced in due course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote
at the AGM and to the 2014 Final Dividend, the H share register
of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 20
May 2015 to Friday, 19 June 2015 (both days inclusive) and from
Thursday, 25 June 2015 to Tuesday, 30 June 2015 (both days
inclusive), respectively, during which periods no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at
the forthcoming AGM, holders of H shares of the Company shall
lodge transfer documents with the Company’s H share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 19 May 2015. In order to qualify for receiving the 2014 Final
Dividends (subject to the approval by shareholders of the Company
at the forthcoming AGM), holders of H shares of the Company shall
lodge transfer documents with the Company’s H share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at the above mentioned address for registration before 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 24 June 2015.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
RMB20,000 (2013: RMB320,000).

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
31 December 2014 are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
32,000,000 H shares of the Company were issued during the Year
in relation to the global offering of the Company. The sole global
coordinator (on behalf of the international underwriters) has not
exercised the over-allotment option and the over-allotment option has
lapsed on 4 December 2014.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the
date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
minimum public float under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) from the
Listing Date, 11 November 2014, to 31 December 2014 and at any
time up to the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the PRC,
the Company is not subject to any pre-emptive rights requiring it to
propose new issues to its existing shareholders in proportion to their
shareholdings.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities from the Listing
Date up to 31 December 2014.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
The following table sets forth information concerning the Directors and
supervisors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014.

nE Fie B EZREHEH
Name Age Position Appointment Date
BE

Directors

SRABM A 42 WTESHRLE 201297 R 248
Mr. ZHANG Degang Executive Director and Chairman 24 July 2012
RimmeL 45 HITESHRBLE 2012477 A24H
Mr. ZHANG Degiang Executive Director and general manager 24 July 2012
SREFEL L 52 WiTESRAIRLE 201358 ANA
Ms. ZHANG Jinghua Executive Director and vice-general manager 11 August 2013
Bl 32 47 FEHTES 2012477 A24H
Mr. GAO Feng Non-executive Director 24 July 2012
FFEEL 49 BAEHITES 2012477 A24H
Mr. LIU Chaojian Independent non-executive Director 24 July 2012
SETEL 51 BAEHITES 201358/ 11H
Mr. GAO Fuping Independent non-executive Director 11 August 2013
AIBAEE 43 BUFNITESR 2013F8A11H
Mr. HO Yuk Ming, Hugo Independent non-executive Director 11 August 2013
ZmsgsE 51 2= 2014587158
Mr. PENG Jiashan Supervisor 15 August 2014
fert 45 2= 201458 715H
Ms. WEI Yi Supervisor 15 August 2014
HRELL 3 EERAFTMAHILE 2012477 A24H
Ms. YANG Jinghua Supervisor and personnel and general affairs manager 24 July 2012

RARDERERBIFNTESREL
MHRAIE3IBER B FNBLIEE L F
EHRE URARERBUIFNTES
BB RARA]

EX -EENSAREEERE

ARBEHESE EELREREEED
JEEEFBEHNAFHRE 1562258 ©

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all of
the independent non-executive Directors are independent of the
Company.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors, supervisors and senior management
of the Company are set out on pages 15 to 25 of this annual report.
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SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

Each of the Directors and supervisors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company on 24 October 2014 and 20
October 2014, respectively. Each service contract is for an initial term
of three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or supervisors of the
Company has or is proposed to have a service contract with the Group
(other than contracts expiring or determinable by any member of the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation).

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and supervisors of
the Company are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or in existence during the year ended 31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests or short positions of the
Directors, supervisors and the chief executive in the Company's
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the associated
corporations of the Company, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") which will have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be recorded in the register referred to therein or which will be required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code"), will be as follows:
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(i)

EBERERFARGPHER (i) Interests of the Directors in the shares of our Company
G AR R
BRAB DL B BTRA
(HEET) BEEDL
Percentage in (1)
the relevant  Percentage in
ROHE class of the total issued
EERE &1 3851 Number of  HEXFME share capital share capital
Name of Director Class of shares shares Nature of interest (Note 1) (Note 1)
SRiEMI A NERRK 43221504 EmHEAA 45.02% 33.77%
Mr. Zhang Degang Domestic Shares Beneficial owner
NERMRK 340104%  HEHMAL 35.43% 26.57%
Domestic Shares HEE A RS D
Interest held jointly with
another person (Note2)
B 4416000  RASEHIABE MR 4.60% 3.45%
Domestic Shares Interest in controlled
corporation MNoe3)
RiER S NERRK 29983104  EHmHEAA 31.23% 23.42%
Mr. Zhang Degiang Domestic Shares Beneficial owner
NERMRK 472488%  HEHMAL 49.22% 36.92%
Domestic Shares HEHFH AR D)
Interest held jointly with
another person (Note2)
B 4416000  RASEHIABE MR 4.60% 3.45%
Domestic Shares Interest in controlled
corporation MNoe3)
REELL NERRK 402132  E=mEAA 4.20% 3.15%
Ms. Zhang Jinghua Domestic Shares Beneficial owner
NERMRK 77620608  EEHAMAL 80.85% 60.64%

Domestic Shares

SR RS e
Interest held jointly with
another person (Note2)

n

)

BT EUARARR2014F12 A31
A 2 3174 $£128,000,000 % % &A%
ABEE - EdE 156,000,000 A E
% %2:32,000,00085% HA °

RIEMISEE - SRER L ERRFEL
TA-BITBALT  ALEESER
BAERRESEMBEROPESRE
%% o AR¥E A HAA20135E7 A26 B i —
WITEHE - RIEMISE A - RIBIAL
ARREFELTEARRBESE =M
TRR2009F4 A17 AR » A
— BT R SR ANEE R 8 A R
RTRER,/ REEGGHELORE
1 - BiSH#E 3178 -

SREBMISE A RORBR LA RIBRE R
BEBABA - MR ARIERAT
BROTEEER

1

]

3)

The calculation is based on the total number of 128,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2014, which was comprised of
96,000,000 domestic shares and 32,000,000 H shares.

Mr. Zhang Degang, Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua are persons
acting in concert and accordingly each of them is deemed to be interested
in the Shares held by each other. By the Acting in Concert Agreement dated
26 July 2013, each of Mr. Zhang Degang, Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms.
Zhang Jinghua confirmed that they have exercised their voting rights at the
meetings of the shareholders and/or directors of the members of our Group
in unanimity since the establishment of Sanzhi Gongkong on 17 April 2009,
and will continue to do so.

Mr. Zhang Degang and Mr. Zhang Degiang are two of the general partners
of Shunxin and are therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Shunxin.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
Directors, supervisors and the chief executive of the Company and
their respective close associates had any interests and short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2014, the persons or corporations who had an
interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of

= the SFO were as follows:
G A RA %R
BRAB DL EEBITRA
(HEED BEEDL
Percentage in (1)
the relevant Percentage in
RAEE class of the total issued
& B2 5ER Number EEEE share capital share capital
Shareholder Class of shares of shares Nature of interest (Note 1) (Note 1)
SRR & ME 43,221,504 ERBEBEA 45.02% 33.77%
Mr. Zhang Degang Domestic Shares Beneficial owner
NE K 34,010,496 BHMA T HERE 35.43% 26.57%
Domestic Shares O 2 (H22)
Interest held jointly with
another personioe?)
ME 4,416,000 REEEE 4.60% 3.45%
Domestic Shares F A 2 (F323)
Interest in controlled
corporationiNote3)
RIERTE MERR 29,983,104 EnEEA 31.23% 23.42%
Mr. Zhang Degiang Domestic Shares Beneficial owner
W& 47,248,896 HEM AT HFARE 49.22% 36.92%
Domestic Shares R 2 (22)
Interest held jointly with
another personiete2)
MERR 4,416,000 PSR A ] 4 2 (t) 4.60% 3.45%
Domestic Shares Interest in controlled
corporationitote3)
SREFEL L NE K 4,027,392 EnEEA 4.20% 3.15%
Ms. Zhang Jinghua Domestic Shares Beneficial owner
W& 77,620,608 BHMA T HERE 80.85% 60.64%

Domestic Shares

HyHE 2% (i)
Interest held jointly with
another personitote2)

EHERIEMBERNERRAR | —T-MFERE
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m The calculation is based on the total number of 128,000,000 ordinary shares in issue
as at 31 December 2014, which was comprised of 96,000,000 domestic shares and
32,000,000 H shares.

@ Mr. Zhang Degang, Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua are persons acting in
concert and accordingly each of them is deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by the others. By the Acting in Concert Agreement dated 26 July 2013, each of Mr.
Zhang Degang, Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua confirmed that they have
exercised their voting rights at the meetings of the shareholders and/or directors of
members of our Group in unanimity since the establishment of Sanzhi Gongkong on
17 April 2009, and will continue to do so.

@ Mr. Zhang Degang and Mr. Zhang Degiang are two of the general partners of Shunxin
and are therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Shunxin.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Directors were
not aware of any other person or corporation having an interest or
short position in shares and underlying shares of the Company which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which
a Director or supervisor of the Company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

During the Year, there had been no contract of significance between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors and their close associates had any interest in
any competing business with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the Year.
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COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING
Each of Mr. Zhang Degang, Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang
Jinghua (the controlling shareholders (within the meaning of the
Listing Rules) of the Company) has confirmed to the Company that
he/she has complied with the non-compete undertaking given by them
to the Company on 11 March 2014. The independent non-executive
Directors of the Company have reviewed the status of compliance and
enforcement of the non-compete undertaking and confirmed that all
the undertakings thereunder have been complied with throughout the
period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2014.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or supervisors of the Company or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were such rights exercised by them,
or was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or supervisors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debt securities (including debentures) of the Company or any
other body corporate.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes organised by the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities for the Group's eligible employees in the PRC. Particulars
of these retirement plans are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

Since the Listing Date up to and including 31 December 2014, the
Company complied with all code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.




o0 W

Report of the Directors

BREETA

HZE2014F 128318 LLFE - ARaE)
EWHRAMENFLITE  MEES
FTA - AR MEA A EREE
MEBEAFRKER o

HEHESEY
AEBRBEREHEE A ATEAS
o

BEREEY
EEeEZLECHEEEDEMASE
BT e RARES - WE R
Tt NEEE R BHREEE  ES
BIEEMASEEE2014F12A3181E
FEMGAEFEEE -

B EED

HZE2014F 12 A31B L FEMLEE Y
BWMERCHEEF KEBEMEBME
% HBREIFEERRER
B ARFRBAFAE LHRE—BRE
B UBEEREFGERHAMEBA
REEZEED

AEEEMm

BERNENEROARAF
1
RER

B T& - 201593278

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company was not
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no
litigation or claim of material importance is known to the Directors to
be pending or threatened against the Company.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There were no significant events after the reporting period of the
Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board has reviewed with the management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial report matters
including the review of the Group’s consolidated annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who shall retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the
Group is to be proposed at the AGM.

By order of the Board

Wuxi Sunlit Science and Technology Company Limited
Zhang Degang
Chairman

Jiangsu, China, 27 March 2015
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On 20 July 2012, the current session of the board of supervisors of the
Company was established upon the approval of the inaugural meeting
of the Company. The current session of the board of supervisors is
comprised of three supervisors, namely Mr. Peng Jiashan, Ms. Wei Yi
and Ms. Yang Jinghua.

In the year ended 31 December 2014, for the Company’s long term
interests and shareholders’ interests, the board of supervisors of the
Company acted in strict compliance with relevant laws, regulations,
rules, regulatory documents, the Articles of Association and Listing
Rules and earnestly performed their duties of supervision as to the
acts of the Directors and senior management of the Company. The
main area of work of the board of supervisors in 2014 is summarised as
follows:

I. MEETINGS CONDUCTED BY THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS
The board of supervisors of the Company convened four
meetings in the year ended 31 December 2014.

. WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The work of the first session of the board of supervisors mainly
comprised of the followings:

1. Inspection over implementation of resolutions of the
general meetings
The board of supervisors of the Company exercised
supervision and inspection of the implementation of the
resolutions in general meetings by the Board and the
senior management through observation and attendance
at the board meetings and general meetings. The board of
supervisors is of the opinion that the Directors and senior
management of the Company have diligently performed
their duties in compliance with resolutions of the general
meetings. No violation of any laws or regulations or Articles
of Association or any act which jeopardises the interests
of the Company or shareholders of the Company has been
found in the performance of the Company’s Directors and
senior management.
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II. WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS (continued)
2. Inspection over legal compliance of the Group’s
operations
The board of supervisors of the Company exercised
supervision on a regular basis over the legal compliance
and rationality of the Group's operation and management
in its ordinary work. It has also exercised supervision over
work performance of the Board and senior management.
The board of supervisors is of the opinion that the Group's
operation is sound and rational, and is in compliance
with all applicable laws, regulations and rules and the
Articles of Association. The members of the Board and
senior management of the Group have conscientiously
and diligently performed their duties, and none of their
act would prejudice the interests of the Group or the
shareholders of the Company.

3. Inspection over the Group'’s daily operating activities
The board of supervisors of the Company exercised
supervision over the Group's operating activities. The
board of supervisors is of the opinion that the Group has
a sound internal control system and has made a great
progress in the formulation and implementation of its
internal work procedures, thus effectively controlled its
exposure to various operating risks. The Group’s operation
is in compliance with the PRC laws and regulations and the
Articles of Association.

4. Inspection over the Group’s financial condition

The board of supervisors of the Company has verified the
Group's 2014 consolidated financial statements, supervised
and inspected the Group’s implementation of relevant
financial policies and legislations as well as details on the
Group's assets, financial income and expenditure. The
board of supervisors is of the opinion that the consolidated
financial statement for 2014 fairly reflected its financial
position and operating results.

Looking forward, the board of supervisors of the Company will
continue to carry out its duties in strict compliance with the Articles
of Association and the relevant laws and regulations and protect the
interests of the shareholders of the Company.

Peng Jiashan
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors

Jiangsu, China, 27 March 2015
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The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of corporate
governance and business ethics in the firm belief that they are essential
for enhancing investors’ confidence and maximizing shareholders’
returns. The Board reviews its corporate governance practices from
time to time in order to meet the rising expectations of stakeholders,
comply with increasingly stringent regulatory requirements and fulfill
its commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

After reviewing the Company'’s corporate governance practices and
the relevant regulations of the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules, the Board is satisfied that the Company
complied with the CG Code provisions for the period from the Listing
Date, namely, 11 November 2014 to 31 December 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and collectively,
must act in good faith in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders. The Board has established four Board committees, being
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Strategic Committee (each a “Board
Committee"” and collectively the "Board Committees”), to oversee
different areas of the Company's affairs.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, namely Mr.
Zhang Degang, Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua, one non-
executive Director, namely, Mr. Gao Feng, and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Liu Chaojian, Mr. Gao Fuping and Mr.
Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo.

Their biographical details and their family relationships (where
applicable) are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management” on pages 15 to 25 of this annual
report. A list of the Directors identifying their roles and functions and
whether they are independent non-executive Directors are available
on the Company's website.

Mr. Zhang Degang, an executive Director and the Chairman of the
Board, is the brother of Mr. Zhang Degiang and Ms. Zhang Jinghua,
both are also the executive Directors of the Company. Save as
disclosed, there are no other financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships among the members of the Board.




4B 3% 4% IR W

Corporate Governance Report

BEES20wm
BEEeHIASENEREEZEREKE
ERDIHELERVERBIREA
SENDEERERN - TREE R H
EE TERG  EFLMENEE K
BWE  BRERGHTHESEEEL R
E o EESCRBRITHERRBRER
AEBEBHNBEEEENENRETE
BYRTEERSREEERKE - EF
SR TESNBERIED - DA
REBERDBSE -

EXeMEAHE BRIRERAKHE
MEEERBR R ERRETIEAEER
B AREZERGRERENEIIR
FEZXLR BEFSNEHNLEEAR
BENNWEER - UERER -

PREEEKRENDAIBUEBAEE
MEREERE UWBTHSEMNBE -
HEAZEENIEREABYEEER -
IR ERITHRE  BRHBASEK
o RAQRIE2014F 1M ARSARZE
EZREEEARRRE LT BRI
BB UNEESSBRRBLEERES
BITHEE -

SEEEENENEE AR A EESH
B SRR A TS A0
EREMB  BEHRERESER
AETE B o

ESNSRBENRRE
ARBICHEEERTEABREEE
HYER R AAMEHEE R IRLHE -

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board sets the Group's overall objectives and strategies, monitors
and evaluates its operating and financial performance and reviews
the corporate governance standard of the Group. It also decides on
matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions, director
appointments or re-appointments, investment policies, dividend
and accounting policies. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for implementing its business strategies and managing
the daily operations of the Group's businesses to the executive
Directors and the members of senior management. The functions and
power that have been delegated are reviewed periodically to ensure
that they remain appropriate.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing and monitoring
the policies and practices on corporate governance and legal and
regulatory compliance of the Group, and the training and continuous
professional development of the directors and senior management.
The Board also reviews the disclosures in the Corporate Governance
Report to ensure compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent access to the
Group's senior management to fulfill their duties. Independent
professional advice can be sought to assist the relevant Directors to
discharge their duties at the Group’s expense upon their request.
Since November 2014, all Directors are provided with monthly updates
on the Company’s performance and financial position to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their first
appointment of directorships or other positions which they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organisations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis and when necessary.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.
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DIRECTORS' CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders
of the Company and have exercised their duties with care, skill and
diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group. Every newly
appointed Director receives an induction to ensure that he has a
proper understanding of the business and operations of the Group and
that he is fully aware of his duties and responsibilities as a director
under applicable rules and requirements.

In compliance with the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, the
Company, together with its legal adviser, organised training sessions
to each of the Directors in relation to continuous responsibilities of
Hong Kong listed company and its directors before and after the
listing in October 2014. In addition, briefings and updates on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements are provided to each of the Directors during
Board meetings to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to provide
independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving adequate
control and balances for the Group to protect the overall interests of
the shareholders and the Group. They serve actively on the Board and
Board Committees to provide their independent and objective views.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board. One of the
independent non-executive Directors has the appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting or related financial management expertise
as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Each independent non-executive Director has submitted an annual
confirmation in writing of his independence to the Company for
the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2014 pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such
confirmations, the Company considers that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent and free of any relationship
that could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgement.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of committees, including
the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration
and Appraisal Committee and Strategic Committee. Each Board
Committee has its defined and written terms of reference approved
by the Board covering its duties, powers and functions. Their terms of
reference are available on the Company's website.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties, including access to management or professional
advice if considered necessary.

(i)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code. The Audit Committee consists
of three Directors, namely Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo (independent
non-executive Director), Mr. Liu Chaojian (independent non-
executive Director) and Mr. Gao Feng (non-executive Director).
Mr. Ho Yuk Ming, Hugo, who has appropriate professional
qualifications and experience in accounting matters, was
appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to assist
the Board in providing an independent view of the effectiveness
of the financial reporting process, internal control and risk
management systems and relationship with external auditor of
the Group, oversee the audit process and perform other duties
and responsibilities as assigned by the Board. These include
reviewing the Group's interim and annual reports.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Audit Committee on 27 March
2015, the Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014, including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, the report prepared by the external
auditor covering major findings in the course of the audit, and the
selection and appointment of the external auditor. No meeting
was held by the Audit Committee during the year ended 31
December 2014 as the Company was listed in November 2014.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(ii)

Remuneration and Appraisal Committee

The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee was established
with terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee comprises three
Directors, namely Mr. Liu Chaojian (independent non-executive
Director), Mr. Gao Fuping (independent non-executive Director)
and Mr. Zhang Degiang (executive Director). Mr. Liu Chaojian is
the chairman of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee are to review and make recommendations to the
Board on the overall remuneration structure and policy for
all Directors and senior management as well as the specific
remuneration packages for the executive Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent process for developing such remuneration policy. No
Director takes part in any discussion on his own remuneration.
The Company’'s objective for its remuneration policy is to
maintain fair and competitive packages based on business
requirements and industry practice. In order to determine
the level of remuneration and fees paid to the members of
the Board, market rates and factors such as each director’s
workload, performance, responsibility, job complexity and the
Group's performance are taken into account.

Pursuant to the first meeting of the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee on 27 March 2015, the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee has reviewed the remuneration policy and
structure relating to the Directors and senior management of
the Company. No meeting was held by the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee during the year ended 31 December 2014 as
the Company was listed in November 2014.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management of
the Group by band for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set
out below:

HENEE (B T) AE
Remuneration bands (HKS) Number of persons
Z5250,000 8
Nil to 250,000

250,000%2500,000 3
250,000 to 500,000
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The Nomination Committee was established with terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code and comprises three
Director, namely Mr. Zhang Degang (executive Director), Mr. Ho
Yuk Ming, Hugo (independent non-executive Director) and Mr.
Gao Fuping (independent non-executive Director). Mr. Zhang
Degang is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to
review the composition of the Board, including its structure, size
and diversity, at least annually to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the requirements
of the business of the Group. It is also responsible to consider
and recommend to the Board any suitably qualified person to
become a member of the Board, monitor the succession planning
of Directors and assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors. The Nomination Committee will also give
consideration to the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below)
when identifying suitably qualified candidates to become the
members of the Board, and the Board will review the Board
Diversity Policy (as defined below), so as to develop and review
measurable objectives for the implementing the Board Diversity
Policy (as defined below) and to monitor the progress on
achieving these objectives.

Pursuant to the first meeting of the Nomination Committee on
27 March 2015, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board and assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors. No
meeting was held by the Nomination Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2014 as the Company was listed in
November 2014.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(iv) Strategic Committee
The Strategic Committee was established with terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code and comprises three Directors,
namely Mr. Zhang Degang (executive Director), Mr. Zhang
Degiang (executive Director) and Mr. Liu Chaojian (independent
non-executive Director). Mr. Zhang Degang is the chairman of
the Strategic Committee.

The primary function of the Strategic Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the long-term development
strategies of the Company.

Pursuant to the first meeting of the Strategic Committee on 27
March 2015, the Strategic Committee has reviewed the financing
plans and long term development of the Company and given
suggestions accordingly. No meeting was held by the Strategic
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2014 as the
Company was listed in November 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management, and the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board is required to hold
at least four Board meetings each year, to be convened and hosted
by the Chairman of the Board. A notice of at least fourteen days shall
be dispatched for a regular Board meeting. The notice shall state the
time, venue and means by which the Board meeting will be convened
at least 3 days before the relevant meeting.

The quorum for a Board meeting is the present of at least half of
the total number of the Directors. A Director may attend the Board
meeting in person, or appoint another Director in writing as his
proxy to attend the Board meeting. The secretary to the Board of
the Company is responsible for preparing and keeping the minutes
of Board meetings and ensuring that such minutes are available for
inspection by any Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there were nine Board
meetings held and all Directors attended the meetings.

GENERAL MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company convened
two extraordinary general meetings and one annual general meeting
of the Company held on 3 January 2014, 15 August 2014 and 12 June
2014 respectively. All Directors attended the meetings.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Directors shall subject to
election at the Company’'s annual general meetings with a term
of office of three years and may be re-elected. The Company has
implemented a set of effective procedures for the appointment of
new Directors. The nomination committee shall, in accordance with
provisions of the relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of
Association, take into account the practical situations of the Company,
consider the selection criteria, selection procedures and terms of
office of the Directors of the Company, and record and submit the
resolutions to the Board for approval. All newly nominated directors
are subject to election and approval at general meetings.

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted the board diversity policy in March 2015. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The board of supervisors of the Company consists of three members.
The employee representative supervisor, namely Ms. Yang Jinghua,
was elected by employees, and the other supervisors were elected by
the shareholders of the Company. Each of the supervisors has entered
into a service contract with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date. The functions and duties
of the board of supervisors include, but are not limited to: reviewing
and verifying financial reports and, if in doubt, appointing certified
public accountant and practicing auditor to re-examine the Company's
financial information; monitoring the business activities of the
Company; supervising the performance of the Directors, the Chairman
of the Board and other senior management members, and monitoring
whether they had acted in violation of the laws, regulations and
Articles of Association in the performance of their duties; requesting
the Directors, the Chairman of the Board and senior management
members to rectify actions which damage the Company's interests;
and exercising other rights given to them under the Articles of
Association.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as the Company’'s code of conduct regarding Directors’ and
supervisors’ securities transactions (the “Model Code"”). Upon
specific enquiries, all Directors and supervisors of the Company
confirmed that they have complied with the relevant provisions of
the Model Code throughout the period from the Listing Date to 31
December 2014.

Senior management who, because of their office in the Company,
are likely to be in possession of inside information, have also been
requested to comply with the provisions of the Model Code.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged in a service contract with an external
service provider, Ms. Ho Wing Yan, who was appointed as the
Company Secretary. Mr. Zhang Degang, the chairman and executive
Director of the Company, is the primary corporate contact person of
the Company with Ms. Ho.

Being the Company Secretary, Ms. Ho plays an important role in
supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within the
Board and that the Board policies and procedures are followed. Ms. Ho
is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance matters
and should also facilitate induction and professional development of
Directors.

During the financial year, the Company Secretary has complied with
the relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. The biographical details of the Company Secretary is set
out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” in this annual report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Financial reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the Group's state of affairs, results and cash flows for the year and in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
Company has selected appropriate accounting policies and has applied
them consistently based on prudent and reasonable judgments
and estimates. The Board considers that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future and is not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to any events or conditions
that may affect the business of the Group or cast doubts on its ability
to continue as going concern.

The responsibilities of PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company's
external auditor, with respect to financial reporting are set out in the
section headed "“Independent Auditor's Report” in this annual report.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)
Internal controls

The Board recognizes its responsibility to ensure the Company
maintains a sound and effective internal control system and the Board
has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group during the year. The Group's internal control
system is designed to safeguard assets against misappropriation and
unauthorized disposition and to manage operational risks. Review
of the Group’s internal controls covering major financial, operational
and compliance controls, as well as risk management functions of
different systems has been done on a systematic basis based on the
risk assessments of the operations and controls. No major issue but
areas for improvement have been identified. The Board and the Audit
Committee considered that the key areas of the Group’s internal
control systems are reasonably implemented.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
PricewaterhouseCoopers has been appointed as the external
auditor of the Company. The Audit Committee has been notified the
nature and the service charges of non-audit services performed by
PricewaterhouseCoopers and considered that such services have no
adverse effect on the independence of the external auditor.

During the Year, the fees to PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect
of its audit services provided to the Group was RMBO0.7 million.
The total fees paid and payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers for the
reporting accountant service in relation to the listing of the Company
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange and certain agreed-upon
procedures in connection with the internal controls of the Company
and its major operating subsidiary was approximately RMB6.9 million
and RMBO0.65 million, respectively.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external auditor
during the Year under review.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance structure, enable
all its shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their rights in
an informed manner and allow all shareholders to engage actively
with the Company. Under the Company's Articles of Association,
the shareholder communication policy and other relevant internal
procedures of the Company, the shareholders of the Company enjoy,
among others, the following rights:

(i)

(ii)

Participation at general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
direct communication between the Board and the shareholders.
The Company encourages the participation of the shareholders
through annual general meetings and other general meetings
where the shareholders meet and exchange views with the
Board, and to exercise their right to vote at meetings. The
Company shall arrange notices of meetings and circulars
containing details on proposed resolutions to be sent to the
shareholders no less than 45 days before the meeting. At general
meetings, separate resolutions are proposed on each substantial
issue, including the election of individual Directors.

Enquiries and proposals to the Board

The Company encourages shareholders to attend shareholders’
meetings and make proposals by either directly raising questions
on both operational and governance matters to the Board and
Board Committees at the general meetings or providing written
notice of such proposals for the attention of the Company
Secretary at the registered office of the Company in Hong Kong
currently situated at 33rd Floor, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or via email to sunlit@wsfg.hk.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014




4 3% 8 Bl

Corporate Governance Report

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

(iii) Convening extraordinary general meetings
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Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board shall convene
an extraordinary general meeting or class meeting within two
months where any shareholder holding, severally or jointly, 10%
or more of the Company's issued shares carrying voting rights
requests in writing for the convening of an extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting. The shareholders holding, severally or
jointly, 10% or more of voting shares at such proposed meeting
may request the Board to convene an extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting by signing and submitting one or
several written requests with the same format and contents and
specifying the agenda of the meeting. An extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting shall be convened by the Board as
soon as practicable upon receipt of the aforesaid written request.
The aforesaid shareholding shall be calculated on the basis of
the date on which the relevant shareholders submit the written
request. If the Board fails to despatch a notice of convening
such meeting within 30 days upon receipt of the aforesaid
written request, the shareholders individually or jointly holding
10% or more of the shares of the Company may convene
such a meeting by themselves within 4 months of the date of
the receipt of such request by the Board. The procedures for
convening such meeting should follow those for convening a
general meeting or class meeting of shareholders by the Board as
closely as practicable.

All reasonable expenses incurred by convening and holding the
aforesaid meeting by shareholders due to the failure of the Board
to hold such meeting in response to the aforesaid request shall
be borne by the Company. Such expenses shall be deducted
from the amounts due by the Company to the Director(s) who
have defaulted their duties.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

(iv)] Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general
meeting
In overseeing and monitoring the business operation of the
Company, the shareholders of the Company have the right to put
forward proposals and raise inquiries. Shareholders individually
or together holding 3% or more of the Company's voting shares
have the right to put up ad hoc proposals in writing to the
Company 10 days before the holding of the general meeting, and
the Company shall include such ad hoc proposals into the agenda
for such general meeting.

The contents of the proposals to be raised shall be within
the scope of duties of the general meetings. It shall have a
clear topic and specific matters to be resolved on, and shall
be in compliance with relevant requirements of the laws,
administrative regulations and the Articles of Association of the
Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to resolutions of the shareholders of the Company passed on
11 August 2013 and 21 December 2013 respectively and a resolution
of the Board of the Company passed on 10 April 2014, the Articles of
Association of the Company were adopted with effect from the Listing
Date. Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the Articles of
Association of the Company during the period from the Listing Date to
31 December 2014.

The Articles of Association of the Company are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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BRERAKE

To the Shareholders of Wuxi Sunlit Science and Technology
Company Limited
(a joint stock company incorporated in the People’'s Republic of China
with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wuxi Sunlit
Science and Technology Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 55 to 127,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as
at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’'s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2014, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(BIESBEFTIE - BRIFMASESAARETITHIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

HE12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
BeE 20145 20134
Note 2014 2013
WA Revenue 5 314,298 318,948
HER K Cost of sales 8 (161,545) (133,125)
EF Gross profit 152,753 185,823
HEMY Selling expenses 8 (5,464) (5,166)
THHEZ Administrative expenses 8 (22,200) (47,567)
HapA Qther income 6 11,710 20,270
Hiblzs /(B8)— 2% Other gains/(losses) — net 7 5,063 (13)
RERE Operating profit 141,862 153,347
B FEUL A Finance income 10 1,692 1,939
b3 Finance expense 10 (3,514) (1,825)
(AR, WA —FE Finance (expense)/income — net (1,822) 114
B Fr 5% AT Al Profit before income tax 140,040 153,461
FriEfiF > Income tax expense 11 (28,438) (22,469)
FRFE Profit for the year 111,602 130,992
RN T PR R FEAG RS Profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company 111,602 130,992
FRAXRDPARRELGETREF Earnings per share attributable to
(UBRAR®TIITR) shareholders of the Company for the year
(expressed in RMB per share)
—EAXREE — Basic and diluted 12 1.1 1.36
BE Dividends 29 139,200 -

FE6IR127TEMM T BZSEB KX The notes on pages 63 to 127 are an integral part of these

B —&BD ©

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(BRIERBRTIE - BRIFMASESAARETTIIR) (Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

BZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December

2014 20134

2014 2013

FRFE Profit for the year 111,602 130,992

Hip2EWzE Other comprehensive income = -

FRE2EWREEE Total comprehensive income for the year 111,602 130,992
AARRREGZENEEEE Total comprehensive income attributable to

shareholders of the Company 111,602 130,992

TEWN A% A8 73% The notes on pages 63 to 127 are an integral part of these

%#63%12
K—3f5 o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(BIESBEFTIE - BRIFMASESAARETITHIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

MW12A31H

As at 31 December

I 2014F 20134
Note 2014 2013
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
T A Land use rights 13 34,251 35,100
mME - BE KK Property, plant and equipment 14 104,555 79,709
B AE Intangible assets 15 347 408
Z Z WA Trade receivables 18 27,000 -
BT EREAE Deferred income tax assets 28 5,581 23,335
171,734 138,552
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 20 78,693 170,904
B PTER Prepaid income tax 1,661 -
BRRIA Prepayments 19 12,027 36,765
B 5 R E A U IE Trade and other receivables 18 304,925 315,333
BIREERE Restricted cash 21 10,123 25,574
ReMREFEIER Cash and cash equivalents 21 239,557 82,678
646,986 631,254
WEE Total assets 818,720 769,806
S EQUITY
&% 7N Share capital 22 128,000 96,000
Btn s (B Share premium 22 311,464 191,085
& Reserves 24 56,767 40,902
REB &R Retained earnings
—EEARERE — Proposed final dividend 29 19,200 -
—HAth — Others 127,011 169,997
BER Total equity 642,472 497,984

BEHRNEMBROEEAR | —Z—MOFERE
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(BRIERBFTIE - BRIFTEEEEEAARETICHR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

M12A31H
As at 31 December
BsE 20145 20134
Note 2014 2013
=L LIABILITIES
REBEE Current liabilities
B 5 R EM N FIE Trade and other payables 25 56,968 93,784
B E P I8 Advances from customers 26 42117 123,270
SHIFEHAE Current income tax liabilities 1,913 8,224
B Borrowings 27 75,250 46,544
176,248 271,822
FREBEE Non-current liabilities . -
BEE Total liabilities 176,248 271,822
HEZNEE Total equity and liabilities 818,720 769,806
REBEEFE Net current assets 470,738 359,432
BEERRBERE Total assets less current liabilities 642,472 497,984

FEIE127TEMW T AZSLAYTEMAE  The notes on pages 63 to 127 are an integral part of these
H—&B5 ° consolidated financial statements.

FEEE 127 B MR A M B HREABM2015  The consolidated financial statements on pages 55 to 127 were
FIA27REESeHE WAL TAL approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2015 and were

REEZE signed on its behalf by:
REER RER Zhang Degang Zhang Deqiang

Ea EZE Director Director
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BALANCE SHEET

(BIESBEFTIE - BRIFMASESAARETITHIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

M12A31H
As at 31 December
I 2014F 20134
Note 2014 2013
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
b A Land use rights 13 4,807 4,919
M - BB RE Property, plant and equipment 14 28,032 26,164
B AE Intangible assets 15 347 408
RETBARIMIRE Investments in subsidiaries 16 101,515 101,515
B 5 eI Trade receivables 18 20,435 -
RIEBREE Deferred income tax assets 28 3,604 1,809
158,740 134,815
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 20 80,767 129,022
B FTSEL Prepaid income tax 2 -
SN Prepayments 19 11,37 45,697
B 5 K E A EUGRIA Trade and other receivables 18 260,518 283,067
BIREIRE Restricted cash 21 10,123 25,574
ReRREFEEER Cash and cash equivalents 21 224,573 24,535
587,354 507,895
BEE Total assets 746,094 642,710
R EQUITY
[N Share capital 22 128,000 96,000
[0 (B Share premium 22 311,464 191,085
& Reserves 24 71,345 56,247
REBEF Retained earnings 23
—BEARERE — Proposed final dividend 29 19,200 -
—HAb — Others 70,969 91,604
Mg Total equity 600,978 434,936

BEHRNEMBROEEAR | —Z—MOFERE
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BALANCE SHEET

(BRIERBFTIE - BRIFTEEEEEAARETICHR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

M12A31H
As at 31 December
BsE 20145 20134
Note 2014 2013
=L LIABILITIES
REBAE Current liabilities
B 5 R EM N FIE Trade and other payables 25 59,083 85,621
B E P I8 Advances from customers 26 34,927 87,706
SHIFEHAE Current income tax liabilities 1,106 4,447
B Borrowings 27 50,000 30,000
145,116 207,774
FREBEE Non-current liabilities . -
BEE Total liabilities 145,116 207,774
HEZNEE Total equity and liabilities 746,094 642,710
REBEEFE Net current assets 442,238 300,121
BEERRBERE Total assets less current liabilities 600,978 434,936
FEIE127EMW T AZEYHEMEAM—  The notes on pages 63 to 127 are an integral part of these financial
2B o statements.

FB5EE127B M5 AR EF 201553 The financial statements on pages 55 to 127 were approved by the
R27HEZESgHHE - WHUA T AL  Board of Directors on 27 March 2015 and were signed on its behalf

REE - by:
REER RER Zhang Degang Zhang Deqiang

Ea EZE Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(BIESBEFTIE - BRIFMASESAARETITHIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

AR BinmE e REEF HRET
BieE Share Share Retained
Note capital ~ premium  Reserves  earnings Total
R2013FE1H18H Balance at 1 January 2013
ek 96,000 191,085 28,585 51,322 366,992
2E R E Comprehensive income
FAFE Profit for the year - - — 130,992 130,992
Hit 2 Ea Other comprehensive income - - _ _ _
2HWERARE Total comprehensive income - - - 130,992 130,992
HEEANRS Transaction with owners
RS LT Transfer to statutory reserves 24(a) - - 10,052 (10,052) -
ERET2ES Transfer to safety fund 24(b) - - 2,265 (2,265) -
BEEEANKZHE  Total transactions with owners - - 12,317 (12,317) -
7A2013%12A31AK Balance at 31 December 2013
o323 96,000 191,085 40902 169,997 497,984
2E R E Comprehensive income
FRFHE Profit for the year = - - 111,602 111,602
Hit 2 Ea Other comprehensive income = - . _ _
2EE A Total comprehensive income - - - 111,602 111,602
HEEANRS Transaction with owners
MBI R ZE 1T A% Issue of ordinary shares to
public shareholders 22(a) 32,000 163,655 - - 195,655
3T ER Share issuance costs 22(a) - (43,276) — — (43,276)
RS KT A Transfer to statutory reserves 24(a) = — 13,174 (13,174) —
ERET2ES Transfer to safety fund 24(b) = = 2,184 (2,184) —
fi% 2. Dividend 29 - - = (120,000)  (120,000)
REEE Contribution by shareholders 24(c) - - 507 = 507
HEEANKXZE%  Total transactions with owners 32,000 120,379 15,865  (135,358) 32,886
A20145F 1283181 Balance at 31 December 2014
iEek 128,000 311,464 56,767 146,241 642,472

EHERIEMBERNERRAR | —T-MFERE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(BIESBEFTIE - BRIFMASESAARETITHIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

BZ12A310LLFE
Year ended 31 December
i 20144 20134
Note 2014 2013
RETHHRESTKE Cash flows from operating activities
LEAMSES Cash generated from operations 30 109,387 46,867
2AFE Interest paid (2,812) (1,825)
DTSR Income tax paid (18,656) (17,060)
W EBFNSIR & /FR Net cash generated from operating activities 87,919 27,982
REZBNRESRE Cash flows from investing activities
BEWE - BEMEER Purchase of property, plant and

BREE equipment and intangible assets (24,428) (32,353)
HEWE  BEMRERN Proceeds from disposal of property,

{2208 plant and equipment 86 276
RIS HED) Change of restricted cash 15,451 (16,130)
K& EEARE S F5 Net cash used in investing activities (8,891) (48,207)
RETBNRSRE Cash flows from financing activities
BRFTEIE Proceeds from borrowings 59,706 46,544
EEt=E Repayments of borrowings (31,000) (30,000)
ERIRE Dividends paid 29 (120,000) -
A FTARRAR S Payments for listing-related expenses (4,828) (10,517)
BIRG FTSRURFE Net proceeds from issuance of shares 174,140 -
fEEEE Contribution by shareholders 24(c) 507 -
A EEPEIE e F5E Net cash generated from financing activities 78,525 6,027
HeREELEEER Net increase/(decrease) in cash and

NGRS cash equivalents 157,553 (14,198)
MNEERSENTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (674) -
FENNESRESEEER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

the year 82,678 96,876
FRONEERELEEER Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 239,557 82,678

F6IR127TEMNM T BZSAB iR The notes on pages 63 to 127 are an integral part of these
H)—EB5 o consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BIESBEFTIE - BRIFMASESAARETITHIR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

Wuxi Sunlit Science and Technology Company Limited (formerly
known as Sunlit Mechanical Engineering Co., Ltd) (the “Company"”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the manufacturing and sale of a range of equipment for steel wire
production lines.

The Company was incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") as a limited liability company on 21 March 2006. The Company
was converted into a joint stock company with limited liability under
relevant PRC laws and regulations on 24 July 2012. The address of the
Company's registered office is A-B15, 18, East Yanxin Road Huishan
Economic Development Zone, Wuxi, PRC.

The Company's shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 11
November 2014.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
thousands (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue
by the Board of Directors of the Company on 27 March 2015.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with
the applicable requirements of the predecessor Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32) for this financial year and the comparative period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 4.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following standards have been adopted by the Group for the first
time for the financial year beginning on 1 January 2014. The adoption
of these new and amended standards and interpretations does not
have any significant impact to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendment to HKAS 32, “Financial instruments: Presentation” on
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. This amendment
clarifies that the right of set-off must not be contingent on a future
event. It must also be legally enforceable for all counterparties in
the normal course of business, as well as in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy. The amendment also considers settlement
mechanisms. The amendment did not have a significant effect on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 36, “Impairment of assets” on the recoverable
amount disclosures for non-financial assets. This amendment
removed certain disclosures of the recoverable amount of CGUs
which had been included in HKAS 36 by the issue of HKFRS 13. It
also enhanced the disclosures of information about the recoverable
amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less
costs of disposal. The amendment did not have a significant effect on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (Continued)
Amendment to HKAS 39, “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement”, on the novation of derivatives and the continuation
of hedge accounting. This amendment considers legislative changes
to “over-the-counter” derivatives and the establishment of central
counterparties. Under HKAS 39 novation of derivatives to central
counterparties would result in discontinuance of hedge accounting.
The amendment provides relief from discontinuing hedge accounting
when novation of a hedging instrument meets specified criteria. The
Group has applied the amendment and there has been no impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Group did not
have any hedge arrangement.

HK(FRIC) 21, “Levies”, sets out the accounting for an obligation to
pay a levy if that liability is within the scope of HKAS 37 “Provisions”.
The interpretation addresses what the obligating event is that gives
rise to the payment a levy and when a liability should be recognised.
The interpretation does not have significant impact to the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, 12 and HKAS 27, “Consolidation for
investment entities”. These amendments mean that many funds
and similar entities will be exempt from consolidating most of their
subsidiaries. Instead, they will measure them at fair value through
profit or loss. The amendments give an exception to entities that
meet an “investment entity” definition and which display particular
characteristics. Changes have also been made HKFRS 12 to introduce
disclosures that an investment entity needs to make. The Group has
applied the amendment and there has been no significant impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements as a result.

Impacts of other standards, amendments and interpretations which
are effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January 2014 are not
material to the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1 January 2014, and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements.

RT5BRHR 2%
B ETTHBEEN
Effective for
3P H s - CHES! accounting periods
Standards/ Amendments/ Interpretation Subject of amendment beginning on or after
2012F F e 2010F 22012 B B F 2 B 201457 A1H
Annual improvements 2012 20102012 cycle of the annual improvements 1 July 2014
2013F FZ e 011 F22013F B HAF R BuE 201457 A1H
Annual improvements 2013 2011-2013 cycle of the annual improvements 1 July 2014
BB e ERE195RIERT RERAMETE - EEHR 201457718
Amendment to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans: employee contributions 1 July 2014
BARMBREERFBNRAER] WS EXBRRMAR 2016551 A1H
Amendment to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operation 1 January 2016
BB EHERIZE165E & AR O E L H AN EE 20165F1 718
BB G ERIEBRAIER]
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and 1 January 2016
amortisation
BRI EERFE105% R REFRBHBERAEDEZHN 20165F1 A1H
BB gt ERE28RAIER] BEHEHRA
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and 1 January 2016

its associate or joint venture
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards not yet adopted (Continued)

RTFIEHE &
BRI E RN

Effective for

R MER] R CHER: accounting periods
Standards/ Amendments/ Interpretation Subject of amendment beginning on or after
BB TEIREERNFE105% - REER  FREHARNDIIMER 20165F1 A1H

?%W%i&%ﬁ,ﬁﬂ%n%ﬁ&
BB ERIE28RAIES
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

BB ERIE NS
Amendment to HKAS 27

014F FE g

Annual improvements 2014

BEEENBIRMER]

Amendment to HKAS 1

BB MG R 155

HKFRS 15

BB RS R B9
HKFRS 9

Investment entities: applying the consolidation exception

B IR R

Equity method in separate financial statements

20124F 22014 F B HAF E v

2012-2014 cycle of the annual improvements

RETE -BEMRERL T2
ISR A g BRI R eV 155
Disclosure initiative — guidance on materiality and
aggregation, the presentation of subtotals, the

structure of financial statements andthe
disclosure of accounting policies

REEFAKIHUA

Revenue from contracts with customers

SRTHE
Financial instruments

1 January 2016

20165F1 A1H
1 January 2016

20165F1 A1H
1 January 2016

2016%F1 A1H

1 January 2016

201751 A8
1 January 2017

201851 A1H
1 January 2018

EHENEMBENARAR | —T-OFEHS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards not yet adopted (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
the above standards, amendments to standards and interpretation on
the financial statements of the Group in their initial applications.

There are no other standards, amendments or interpretations to
HKFRS that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a
material impact on the Group.

(c) New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the “Companies
Ordinance”) come into operation as from the Company's first financial
year commencing on or after 3 March 2014 in accordance with
section 358 of the Companies Ordinance. The Group is in the process
of making an assessment of expected impact of the changes in the
Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements in the
period of initial application of Part 9 of the new Companies Ordinance.
So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant
and only the presentation and the disclosure of information in the
consolidated financial statements will be affected.

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. |dentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date
carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains
or losses arising from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to
be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with HKAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred the amount of any non-

controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value

of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of

the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total

of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and

previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net

assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,

the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated income

statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the investee's net assets
including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the board of directors that makes strategic
decisions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the entities
within the Group are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the Company’s functional currency and
the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the consolidated income statement
within ‘finance income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the consolidated income statement within
“other gains/(losses) — net”.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery 10 years
Vehicles 4 years
Computer and electronic equipment 3-5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Interior decoration 5 years

Except for the residual values rate of decoration which is zero, the
residual values rate of other property, plant and equipment are 5%.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within “other
gains/(losses) — net” in the consolidated income statement.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and machineries
under construction and pending installation and is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Historical expenditure that is directly attributable
to the construction comprises construction costs, the cost of plant
and machineries and applicable borrowing costs incurred during
the construction period. No provision for depreciation is made on
construction-in-progress until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and ready for intended use. When the assets concerned
are brought into use, the costs are transferred to property, plant and
equipment categories and depreciated in accordance with the policy
mentioned above.

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014




B3 4 W 85 R W ik

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(BRIERBFTIE - BRIFTEEEEEAARETICHR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 EASHEEEMEw

26 tiufEMARE

30 {5 P AR AR RS 3F KORVE S
Bk - KAIEBESBE LT
T fE M (F N FA6E50F 1 F)
PRS2 (B » L fE M 2 #sH ot
THERERIREEEETE o

27 WWAE
(a) EAEBS

W R A P T W B B A B
ST ER TR CREATA) B -

28 FERMEERE
FHIHECEERNAFRABREBERR
FREENA KBRS 2 HIRRE
MEBRREEZREEBLEAIRE
CHRERER - OB ABELZ
NPEAREERANEERBEREZ
ReERE - RFHHRER - BERA
DHRHRRAERECREERCREESE
BA)MAS - REEI  CREMEZIFE
TREEEASERS ARIZRERE
A LA 5 -

29 TREE

29.1 73
AEBBESRMEES B ANUNTER

ERREWHIE - nBRFBAZLSE
ERMEEZENME - BEERERENS
HRASETSRMEEZ DM -

R R IR Ty BB T 5 3 B R (E
i B 75 & E =k A BB E 1 AR R 2 FR DT
TeMEE HWERABREERDEE
W BERIRERREEBE12(E A 4
HA TR R AEE 2 RIARI o
LEBEROBRIRBEE - AEH
ZEFMEEFEREREEREBR
RRTHNZ [ 8 5 K E At e UK R | (Ff 3
213)  [ERGBIBZ IR[BERREF
B A J(FfiE2.14) ©

EHERIEMBERNERRAR | —T-MFERE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Cost represents consideration paid for the rights
to use the land on which various plants and buildings are situated for
periods varying from 45 to 50 years. Amortisation of land use rights
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of the land use
rights.

2.7 Intangible assets

(a) Computer software

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are
amortised over their estimated useful lives, which does not exceed
five years.

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.9 Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
loans and receivables. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more than 12 months after the end
of the reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets. The
Group's loans and receivables comprise “trade and other receivables”
(note 2.13), “restricted cash” and “cash and cash equivalents” in the
balance sheet (note 2.14).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss” category are presented in
the consolidated income statement within “other gains/(losses) — net”
in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of other income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

2.11 Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised lost
(Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or
less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment.

When the terms of trade and other receivables that would otherwise
be past due or impaired have been renegotiated, trade and other
receivables are remeasured using the revised effective interest
method determined according to the renegotiated terms and
conditions. Any difference between the carrying amounts of trade
and other receivables before and after the renegotiation is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks,
other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.16 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

2.18 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company and Company’s subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, only to the
extent that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the
future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.20 Employee benefits

The Group only operates defined contribution pension plans. In
accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the PRC based
employees of the Group participate in various defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments in the PRC under which the Group and the
PRC based employees are required to make monthly contributions
to these plans calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries.
The municipal and provincial governments undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired PRC
based employees’ payable under the plans described above. Other
than the monthly contributions, the Group has no further obligation for
the payment of retirement and other post retirement benefits of its
employees. The assets of these plans are held separately from those
of the Group in independently administrated funds managed by the
governments.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan, under which the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the shares is
recognised as an expense with a corresponding credit to equity. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the shares.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs and
legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Warranty provision mainly represents the estimation cost of providing
maintenance services as well as the replacement of accessories in
connection with the quality warranty based on past experience.

2.22 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied,
stated net of discounts returns and value-added taxes.

The Group’s revenue recognition policy is in line with the industry
norm. The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliable measured, it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group's activities as described below. The Group bases
its estimates on historical experience, taking into consideration of the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the specification of each
arrangement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)
The revenue recognition policy on sales of goods is as follow:

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of a
range of equipment for steel wire production lines and standalone
machineries. Revenue from sales of equipment is recognised
when the risk and reward of the goods has been transferred to
the customer, which is usually upon (1) delivery of products to the
customer; (2) completion of the installation and on-site testing (if
required in the sale contract); and (3) the acceptance by the customer
of the equipment without any further unfulfilled obligation.

2.23 Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loans and receivables are recognised using
the original effective interest rate.

2.24 Government grant

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the consolidated income statement over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lesser) are charged to the consolidated income statement on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The overall risk management
program of the Group focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on financial
performance of the Group.

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates only within the PRC and virtually all its revenues
and expenses are denominated and settled in RMB with the exception
of export sales (approximately 0.04% for the year ended 31 December
2014 and approximately 0.7% for the year ended 31 December
2013) that are denominated in USD. The Group has negligible foreign
exchange risk exposure and does not use any financial instrument for
hedging.
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3 HERBEEREGs)
3.1 HHEERBEZR@E®

(a) TEREREE)
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MRARRBEEBRAER LT - R
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ReRENERREAKERKRER
ERMSMNEREEH M TR KE R ER -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)  Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Arising from the Company’s listing on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, as at 31 December 2014, the cash and cash equivalents
dominated in HK$ was approximately RMB173,456,000 and the
other payable for listing related expenses dominated in HK$ was
approximately RMB5,259,000. If the exchange rate of HK$ increase/
decrease by 5% against the RMB with all other variable held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been approximately
RMB7,148,000 (2013: not applicable) higher/lower. Considering
the exchange rate of HK$ against RMB was relating stable, such
deposit will be transferred to domestic group entities and the other
payable will be settled soon, the Group did not take into any hedge
arrangement.

(i) Cash flow and fair value interests rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of the
Group will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk and liquidity risk as
all its bank borrowings are repayable within one year from the date of
the balance sheet and their renewal is subject to volatility in market
interest rates.

The Group’'s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates as the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities other than its bank
deposits and borrowings. Borrowings at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Bank deposits and borrowings at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. The Group
has not hedged its cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. Details
of the Group’s bank deposits and borrowings have been disclosed in
notes 21 and 27.

The Group monitors interest rate fluctuation to ensure that exposure
to interest rate risk is within an acceptable level.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank deposits and trade and other receivables.
The carrying amounts or the undiscounted nominal amounts,
where applicable, of each class of these financial assets represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the
corresponding class of financial assets.

To manage the credit risk, bank deposits are placed with highly
reputable financial institutions.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that products are sold
to customers with appropriate credit history. The Group assesses
the creditworthiness of a customer by closely examining a number
of indicators which include its financial and operational conditions
(including whether the customer’s production facilities are in full
operation, the site of the facilities, scale of operation, and the
customer’s amount of investments in property, plant and equipment),
its credit rating and competitive landscape of the market. Based on
such assessment and the value of the relevant contract, the Group
set a maximum balance of amount due allowable for a customer.
The finance department of the Group monitors the past due trade
receivables and directs the sales personnel to follow up the collection
of the trade receivables. The sales department of the Group also
set up a credit profile for each customer. Record relating to the
transactions with the customer is updated monthly to monitor the
amount of sales, payment, accumulated amount outstanding, amount
past due and unpaid, and accumulated bad debts made as of the end
of the month. The finance department of the Group monitors and
updates the customer’s trade receivables position from time to time,
keeps track of the movement of the trade receivables, and ensures
that the outstanding amounts due do not exceed the maximum
balance allowable for a customer. Specific review on the recoverability
of past due receivables is performed on a regular basis and detailed
disclosure of allowance for impairment of trade receivables is set out
in note 18. Normally the Group does not require collateral from trade
debtors.
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3 HERBEREs

3.1 HHEERBEZR@E®
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group exercises prudent liquidity risk management by maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to
the dynamic nature of the underlying business, the Group aims at
maintaining flexibility in funding by maintaining adequate amount of
cash and cash equivalents.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s non-
derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

rEH Group

DME
Less than
1 year

"20145F12H31H At 31 December 2014
RITRER Bank borrowings 75,250
& FRF 2 (HEE) Interest payments on borrowings (note (i) 1,786
B 5 N E b e~ 7108 (B R (i) Trade and other payables (note (ii)) 51,864
=t Total 128,900

R2013%F12A31H At 31 December 2013
RITHER Bank borrowings 46,544
B FRFLE () Interest payments on borrowings (note (i) 2.290
B 5 N E A e R (BT (i) Trade and other payables (note (ii)) 88,931
et Total 137,765

BEHRNEMBROEEAR | —Z—MOFERE
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3 B¥EREE@
3.1 Bﬁ%ﬂlﬁlﬂi &)
(C) ///bjfjécf”

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

b NS Company

DIME
Less than
1year

R2014%12A31H At 31 December 2014
BITER Bank borrowings 50,000
B FRFE () Interest payments on borrowings (note (i) 233
B 5 N E A e kIR (B (i) Trade and other payables (note (ii)) 55,514
st Total 105,747

7A2013%F12831H At 31 December 2013
RITER Bank borrowings 30,000
B RS (BEE) Interest payments on borrowings (note (i) 1,272
B 5 R EoAth S 3B (BTRE (i) Trade and other payables (note (ii)) 82,514
wst Total 113,786

0] RITERMENREBEETARETEERE
BV IR A IR TR B A A R

(i)  TEREEGENTER  ENVERENRESRE
P B -

32 EXERE
AEEEBREANEEEERERAEHE
FECENE N - UARRREMHER R
REMERFEA ARERNEG - WA
EEREE AR EARKA o

BTHELIEAREN  AEBHTH
ETHBRENRELE  ARTREE
A BT S A LU R -

Eﬁi%P\] RT—#%  AEBEREBEEERE
LR ED W§$ E%é%ﬁ% b Rz A
mfﬁ‘%u%@ﬁé”ﬁr% °

(i) The interest on bank borrowings is calculated based on bank borrowings held as of the
balance date and up to their respective maturity dates and the applicable interest rates.

(ii) Excluding other taxes payable, employee benefits payable and provision for quality
warranty expenses.

3.2 Capital management

The Group's objectives of capital management are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
borrowings divided by total equity.
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3 B¥EREE@

LRIFTEEEE A ARE T LA7R) (All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 EXREEH) 3.2 Capital management (Continued)
EEAMELRITENT The gearing ratio is calculated as follows:
M12A318
As at 31 December
20145 20134F
2014 2013
HBIE(MEE27) Total borrowings (note 27) 75,250 46,544
,\J’éﬁn Total equity 642,472 497,984
BEBRBLE Gearing ratio 1.7% 9.3%

3.3 AFEMRE
REEBVTEZATFEETNENESHE
ElemaE -

AEESREE(BREE S MEMBYGK

B XBRHBTHERALRRENEASE

BHB)MEHAB(BREES REME

H,TAIELA&L {ﬁﬁk)i’]}*ﬁ/\hﬁﬂﬁﬁ i
N EEREERS

4 EREFHEFRHE

EF RAE S RSENG > AREBE
REBEMEMEAZETHE  BREEEH
BRTHRELSRREFNEIERA -

41 EESFHEFTRER
AEBEFRRIEL BT REBRE - A5 E
AHAERTIEESR ROSEMERERS
RER - RARESEHR T EFTRFERN
BEMBENREEFLENAENE
RERE SR AR RS o

EHENEMBEOHARAR | —F

—EERE

3.3 Fair value estimation
There are no financial assets or financial liabilities of the Group re-
measured at fair value.

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets (including trade and
other receivables, restricted bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents) and short-term liabilities (including trade and other
payables and current borrowings) approximate their carrying amounts
due to their short-term maturities.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)

(a) Current and deferred income taxes

Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for
income tax. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such difference will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and tax
losses are recognised when management considers to be probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of income tax assets and taxation in the periods in which
such estimate is changed.

(b) Impairment of trade receivables

The management estimates the allowance for impairment of trade
receivables by assessing their recoverability individually with reference
to the past repayment history as well as subsequent settlement
status. Allowances are applied to these receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be collectible. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount of trade
receivables and the impairment charge in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables of the Group as of 31
December 2013 and 2014 were disclosed in note 18.
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5 WA 5 REVENUE

AREBFEREAENHEE —ZIAR  The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of a range
BUEMA R RERE - HE2014F K& of equipment for manufacturing steel wire products. Revenues from
2013F12A31HIEFE - REHEEM sales of goods for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 are as

WA - follows:
BZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
FELR Production lines
—EEEMHGEER — Brass electroplating wire production lines 183,538 230,114
—EMEELR — Other production lines 20,432 9,453
B Standalone machines 91,769 41,564
HabEERE - T REM Other mould repairing equipment,
components parts and accessories 18,559 37817
314,298 318,948

BRERKE([EEZLEREE])E  The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified
BEARAAMINITES - TELER  as the executive directors of the Company. The CODM regards the
RERAEEXERE—MWELLER - Group's business as a single operating segment and reviews the
Wiz FR I E K o I - NEBEE  financial statements accordingly. Also, the Group operates its business
ERERMEEER - AL EEE52  only within mainland China. Therefore, no business/geographical
%/ RS EER - segment information is presented.

REERBAKRBUATIINGER - 2% The Group's revenues were derived from the following external
BEPRBIE2014F12 31852013412 customers that individually contributed more than 10% of the Group's
RA3BIEFEZEEERAEERWAI10% revenues in the year ended either 31 December 2014 or 31 December

PAE - 2013:
BZ1283181LEE

Year ended 31 December
20145 20134F
2014 2013
NS Company A 2,053 76,454
~AIB Company B 88,256 3,959
AR]C Company C 172 48,878
NG Company D 81,506 22,521
~AJE Company E 56,426 61
228,413 151,873

BB NEMBBROABRARF | —T-—NFERE
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6 HiwA 6 OTHERINCOME
BZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20144 20134
2014 2013
AR ([BER )R (F3Ea) Value-added tax (“VAT") refunds (note(a)) 3,370 5,158
R R B (B 3E(D) Government subsidies (note(b)) 8,340 15,112
11,710 20,270
M3 - Notes:

@  BEBEETEER  ARARZENBATES ()

According to the relevant tax regulations, the sales of self-developed software products
of the Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary, Wuxi Haisheng Software Technology
Co., Ltd. ("Haisheng Software”), are entitled to VAT refunds from July 2010 until June

TEREHRIBARAR(DEREM DHE BT
BEFEM D BB H#EBE2010F7 A %£2015%6 A
MR BE2011412 AE2016F 10 A HF HIZERK

B o

(b)  BUTHBIEIBREASERTREMBLEETR (b

AL © projects and for corporate development.

7 His (BB 38 7

2015 and from December 2011 until October 2016, respectively.

OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET

Government subsidies mainly represented subsidies for the Group’s technical research

BZ12A3MALEE
Year ended 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
fE W (7Ha) Compensation gains (note (a)) 5,002 -
HEmME MBEYZ(E18);F%  Gains/(losses) on disposal of plant and equipment, net 52 (2)
EH s/ (B18) Foreign exchange gains/(losses) 9 (11)
5,063 (13)
BIE - Note:

(a) ﬁiﬁ%é%’éﬁﬁ@lﬁ%t*ﬁ HEBESRAMXANE @

The compensation gains represented penalty paid by customers who terminated the
relevant purchase contracts.
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8 BMEIITHREX

8 EXPENSES BY NATURE

BZ12A3MALEE
Year ended 31 December
2014F 20134
2014 2013
R mRERGNFEEE Changes in inventories of finished goods and
waork in progress 92,036 32,066
EMEHFER Raw materials used 63,242 90,098
1 BEA X (FFE9) Employee benefit expenses (note 9) 25,044 23,401
IV TR E (Bi7E(a) Qutsourced installation fee (note(a)) 1,235 1,018
HibFHIES Other tax charges 4,977 7,367
ENRBEE Entertainment expenses 3,069 3,876
R IE R (B (B BB ), B (Reversal of allowance)/allowance for
impairment of receivables (21,757) 11,460
e M (513 ~ 145%215) Depreciation and amortisation (notes 13, 14 and 15) 4,663 4,076
/NSRS Office expenses 1,350 2,228
EEF Transportation expenses 1,963 2,550
ZRAX Travelling expenses 3N 3,765
Hefx Rental expenses 175 783
EEER Professional fees 3,617 564
EFRERE Listing-related expenses 2,406 -
ZERET BN & Auditor's remuneration 700 180
HEMRx Other expenses 2,718 2,426
HMEHERA ~ SHEMXKRITHBIX  Total cost of sales, selling expenses and
administrative expenses 189,209 185,858

@  IBREESARFRHEFXELZERBOLEAX ()

Note:

The outsourced installation fees were fees paid to companies which provided

B - professional installation services on an as-needed basis.
9 EEEMNHX(afFE=ERreE 9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
EfE) DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISOR'’S
EMOLUMENTS)
BZ1283181LEE
Year ended 31 December
20144 20134F
2014 2013
TE - Ha kREED Wages, salaries and discretionary bonuses 17,622 17,109
Hibt RERA ~ (EEEHN & Other social security costs, housing benefits and other
HibEEEH employee benefits 4314 3,627
RIRE A — REHREHE Pension costs — defined contribution plans 3,108 2,765
25,044 23,401

BEHRNEMBROEEAR | —Z—MOFERE
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9 EERANAX(BEESERE

EME) @)

(a) EEREEMS
REENEEHE2014FE12A31B IHE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISOR'S

EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every director and supervisor for the year ended

EHMEEHINNT 31 December 2014 is set out below:
Hitnat R
BA- 5
B R H At
EEEA
B{kE  Othersocial
BA-RE security
e HE costs,
Pension housing
costs — benefits
MR defined  and other
wne 4 Discretionary contribution  employee at
i Name Fees Salaries bonus plans benefits Total
HITES Executive Directors
KizRl Zhang Degang = 460 38 3% 2 565
oRfEas (RT3 Zhang Degiang note (i) - 450 37 35 52 574
REFIE Zhang Jinghua — 281 3 - 1 305
FHTES Non-executive Director
513 Gao Feng - - - - _ _
BUFBTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
L= Liu Chaojian 100 = - - - 100
BEE: Ho Yuk Ming Hugo 9 - _ _ _ %
BEY Gao Fu Ping % - - - _ %
EZx Supervisors
g (i) Peng Jiashan (note (ii) - _ - _ _ ~
2R (FIzE() Wei Yi (note (ii)) - - . _ _ _
B Yang Jinghua s % 1 p7) % 154
HEb (B k) Sun Gaojian (note (ii) - 120 1 29 13 193

92
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9 EEEANMX(EBFEEERE 9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING

EME) e DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISOR'’S
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
(a) EEREEMS (%) (a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)
EEEREEHZE2013F12A31HIEE  The remuneration of every director and supervisor for the year ended
ERMEEHINNT 31 December 2013 is set out below:
Hit{R
A5
B R EAh
EEREA
%  Other social
KA —RE security
a2l costs,
Pension housing
costs - benefits
[Nl defined  and other
we %4 Discretionary contribution  employee o=t
jaF Name Fees Salaries bonus plans benefits Total
PTES Executive Directors
R Zhang Degang - 460 38 31 29 558
EEEACE) Zhang Degiang (note (i) - 450 37 33 30 550
REREE Zhang Jinghua - 280 23 - 14 317
FHTES Non-executive Director
i Gao Feng - - - - -
BYFHITES Independent Non-executive
Directors
Ellepe Liu Chaojian 9% _ _ _ _ %
[EE Zhou Qi 48 - _ _ _ 48
EELE Ho Yuk Ming Hugo 40 - - - - 40
25&8¥ Gao Fu Ping 2 - - - - 2
EZx Supervisors
2 Hu Nong - - - - - -
IHBEREE Yang Jinghua - 85 10 18 17 130
Fak () Sun Gaojian [note (ii) - 116 13 19 19 167

MIEE -

Notes:

0] ARRRAIRRRIERTE  WNRERZ — o 0]

The general manager of the Company is Mr. Zhang Degiang, who is also one of the
directors.

(ii) BEREEN014FESAURBEEE B -2 (i)
ML L~ B ER2014F8 158 INARE
o

Mr. Sun Gaojian leaved the position as a supervisor on 14 August 2014. Mr. Peng
Jiashan, Ms. Wei Yi joined the Group on 15 August 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, no directors received
emoluments from the Group as inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. No directors waived or
had agreed to waive any emoluments (2013: nil).

REZE2014F12A3BIEFE - HiES
EWBMAEE S EAMARER KA
BESAHReHREE  MEES
FRE K R B REETB & (20134 - &) -
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9 EEFEAMNFEXZ(EBFEEENRE 9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
EME) DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISOR'S
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
(b) EEEEFAL (b) Five highest paid individuals
HE2014F12A31HIEEE - ZEEFR  The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
ZEEFHATEIE24(2013%F : 3% )% include 2 directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
- FEHERME LT ONE - presented above for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: 3).

HZE2014F12A31HILEE - ©ft%E  The emoluments paid and payable to the remaining 3 (2013: 2)
REE35 (20134 : 28) ALHEIEE  individuals during the year ended 31 December 2014 are as follows:
BEAT

BZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
TE& - e kit Wages, salaries and bonuses 792 600
Hihg 8@ Other employee benefits 235 125
1,027 725
Be N FIATEE The emoluments fell within the following bands:
BZ1283181LEE
Year ended 31 December
20144 20134
2014 2013
e #E(ET) Emolument bands (in HK$)
= —1,000,000/8 T (HHERE — Nil — HK$1,000,000(equivalent to nil — RMB789,200)
AR #789,2007T) 3 2
10 B ARBEX 10 FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSE
BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
MEFX : Interest expense:
- AR ABHEERRITER — Bank borrowings wholly repayable within 5 years (4,338) (1,847)
o EEREEENMEEHE Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets 1,498 22
BB EBNIE L EE Exchange losses on financing activities (674) -
BIBHRY Total finance expense (3,514) (1,825)
BFREUA Finance income:
—IRITR B UL A — Bank interest income 1,692 1,939
B (X)), WA EE Net finance (expense)/income (1.822) 114
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11 FrSBifx 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
HZ12A31ALEE
Year ended 31 December
20145 20134F
2014 2013
B EIRTES R — PRI TSR Current income tax — PRC corporate income tax 10,684 24116
EIEFTIS L (HI3E28) Deferred income tax (note 28) 17,754 (1,647)
FEsiEX Income tax expense 28,438 22,469

B T XAty R B PR ISRLSN -

K&

BB AR E b RDERER R FTISEL -

RERSEAEH ([ REMES )
AEB B ERN B LH B R ) ERT
WABBREMER -

RIBERBECEMERE(FCEEMER
SE)]) - F2008F1 A1 HAE - FrEfERE

Except for the PRC corporate income tax described below, the Group is

not subject to income tax of other jurisdictions.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

CIT is provided on the assessable income of entities within the Group
established in the PRC.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (the “New CIT Law"),
the CIT is unified at 25% for all types of entities, effective from 1

BB EMMSH AT —225% © January 2008.

(a) REFBEFCEEMSHE)  AAFIA (@) The Company’s applicable CIT rate is 25% according to the New
BRATEMGHEA25%  BIEH CIT Law. Under the relevant regulations of the New CIT Law, the
CEMGBTRNMBER - A2 Company qualified as High/New Tech Enterprise for three years
AIR2013FEE2016F =ZFFE S from 2013 to 2015. Therefore, the Company applied a reduced
M EER - At - ARER CIT rate of 15% (2013: 156%) for the year ended 31 December
B ZE2014F12A31 B IEFEHRA 2014.

15% (20134 : 16% ) BU R e 1> ZEFT
(b) ARBIMMERRGEEFNR20129F (b)) Haisheng Software, a subsidiary of the Company qualified as a

EHERIEMBERNERRAR | —T-MFERE

EVSHCS EFRBRUE)E THAK L
B REMNER - BIEBHBATGEE
B OBRBRHERECEMEHR
FmEE=F(EREEENE
FREHRGEENBGEEEFM
EEMIEEER) NEFHREB)RIE
BL0%ERAMERE - BIE2014F
12A31BLIEFE  BRNEFNERA
DEMBREA12.5% (20134 :
0%) °

newly established software enterprise under the New CIT Law in
2012. According to relevant tax regulations, Haisheng Software
is exempt from CIT for two years, followed by a 50% reduction
in the applicable tax rates for the next three years, commencing
either from the first year of commercial operations or from
the first year of profitable operation after offsetting tax losses
incurred in prior years. For the year ended 31 December 2014,
Haisheng Software’s applicable CIT rate is 12.5% (2013: 0%).
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11 Fﬁ%ﬁf’aﬁi‘i(@ 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
PE B EFREH ([EEMEH ] (&)

REFE W R AR BTSN X H B R
MATAEE R B B R W EE ST
Shx e ENER - ATHERNT -

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT"”) (Continued)

The difference between the actual income tax charge in the
consolidated income statements and the amount which would
result from applying the enacted tax rate to profit before tax can be
reconciled as follows:

BZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20144 2013%F
2014 2013
B Fr 8% A0 Al Profit before income tax 140,040 153,461
RETEHRAENTIE Taxation calculated at the statutory tax rate 35,010 38,365
NTEENTE Effects of:
ETEEERZHEEMERH Preferential income tax enjoyed by certain group entities (6,880) (17,236)
B B S MO BB N R R Extra deduction allowance for research and
development expenses (651) (762)
EEACEMEHREBMEEE  Adjustment to deferred income tax assets
FTS BB EFTERE due to change of applicable CIT rate - 1,679
W BRI TS 7 B E R Tax losses for which no deferred income
MIEEE tax asset was recognised 198 147
RAIFET RIS ¢ Expenses not deducted for income tax purposes: 761 276
FrEsiEX Income tax expense 28,438 22,469

12 BREF

FRERBNOFTEITEBKB AR RHE

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted average

B ARG R DA A E B A A o4

BE - number of ordinary shares in during the year.
BZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20144 20134
2014 2013
ARG ANEMLEFE(ARETIT)  Profit attributable to owners of the Company (RMB'000) 111,602 130,992
DETE @R INETSE(TAR)  Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue(thousand) 100,384 96,000
BRERLEERT (AR BX)  Basic and diluted earnings per share (RMB/share) 1.1 1.36

BERA A B R20149F 201312 A31H
WEMMABERTENNNEEL B -
SR ERFENFRERREF -

As the Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding as at 31 December 2014 and 2013, diluted earnings per
share is equal to basic earnings per share.
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13 T fFEFARE 13 LAND USE RIGHTS
AEE Group
BZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20144 20134
2014 2013
READ At the beginning of year 35,100 35,895
By Amortisation (849) (795)
RER At the end of year 34,251 35,100

NEERLHFERENERIELEME  The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating
TEMRIE - KREBFRANLMFEHAEY  lease payments. All the land use rights of the Group are located in
MR E R - WIREHELFE45250 mainland China and are held on leases for 45 to 50 years.

¢ o

AEB L FERAENBEECHNGEAUE  Amortisation of the Group's land use rights has been charged to
FMITHFAZ R o administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement.

M2014%12A31H » AEBEEBEHAR As at 31 December 2014, land use right of approximately
#26,125,0007C (201312 A31H : A RMB26,125,000 (31 December 2013: RMB26,790,000) of the Group
R #26,790,0007T ) By i {F D A{E  was pledged for the Group’s bank borrowing of approximately
AREBRITERL AREE25,250,0000r  RMB25,250,000 (31 December 2013: RMB16,544,000) (note 27).
(201312 A31H : AR® 16,544,000

70) (MI5527 ) B4 o

RAFE] Company
HZ12A3MALLEE
Year ended 31 December
20144 20134F
2014 2013
REHD At the beginning of year 4,919 5,031
e Amortisation (112) (112)
RER At the end of year 4,807 4,919

BEHRNEMBROEEAR | —Z—MOFERE
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14 ¥ - BERKE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

rE Group
Bk BAE
g7 HE g BTR HE EARE TRIE &
Computer
and electronic Office Interior  Construction
Buildings ~ Machinery ~ Vehicles ~ equipment  equipment  decoration i progress Total
1201351418 At1 January 2013
AR Cost 35,960 3578 34 2965 90 109 10,261 56,932
ZHiE Accumulated depreciation (@557 NB) 1 (19%) (19) (65) - (1041
FRYE Net book amount 31,408 2307 90 %7 51 1 10,261 16,518
HZ2013512A31ALEE  Yearended 31 December 2013
ENRETE Opening net book amount 31,408 2307 90 %7 521 4108 48518
HE Additions - - 48 114 b - 36,074 36,621
2 Transfers 13 169 - - - - 582) -
HE Disposals - (166) 105) 0 - - - (278)
HEER Depreciation charge (1717) (343) (436) (454) (180) (2 - 3l
EREmFE Closing net book amount 30,104 1,987 877 620 306 N W57 79709
12013512318 At31 December 2013
KA Cost 36,378 3042 3769 2,989 945 109 45,753 92985
ZHHE Accumulated depreciation 6274) (5% 2392 (2369 (599) (87) - [137)
REFE Nt book amount 30,104 1987 877 620 346 N B 719709
BZ22014512831ALLEE  Year ended 31 December 2014
ENRREE Opening net book amount 30,104 1,987 8 620 346 2 57 19709
NE Additions - - 3517 662 19 1,150 2201 28509
2l Transfers 51,202 1213 - - - - (524%) -
hE Disposals - (8) (%) . - - - ()
TEER Depreciation charge (1,774) (335) (918) (365) (178) (99) - (3,669)
EREAFE Closing net hook amount 19512 2857 3450 917 187 1,073 16499 104555
R2014%125318 At 31 December 2014
KA Cost 87,620 4,736 6,268 3,651 964 1,259 16499 120997
ZitHE Accumulated depreciation (8048)  (1879) (2818  (2734) (1m) (186) - (16482
REFE Nt book amount 19572 2857 3,450 917 187 103 16499 104555
WEERETAGERGEKRAILA TR Depreciation charges were included in the following categories in the
consolidated income statement:
HE12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
201445 20134
2014 2013
SHEE R AN Cost of sales 996 1,323
TR Administrative expenses 2,392 1,794
HERX Selling expenses 281 35
3,669 3,152
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14 Y% BEREZH®

REME (5)

FR - AEEEEREEENEEK
N 49 N R 1,498,000 7T (20134 : A
E¥22,0007T) - fEEKAIREEED
INHEF R R 6.156% & A1k (20134 -

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued

Group(Continued)

During the year, the Group capitalised borrowing costs amounting to
approximately RMB1,498,000 (2013: RMB22,000) on qualifying assets.
Borrowing costs were capitalised at the weighted average rate of its
general borrowings of 6.15% (2013: 6.15%).

6.15%) °
VNN Company
gk BAZ
¥ e AE BTR RE EREE EEIE it
Computer
and electronic Office Interior Construction

Buildings ~ Machinery ~ Vehicles  equipment  equipment  decoration i progress Total
1201351418 At1 January 2013
KA Cost 71507 3578 2608 2% 605 109 87 3133
ZiE Accumulated depreciation (aode  (151)  (1868)  [1.889) (234) (65 - (9347)
RHFE Mt book amount 1461 2371 1 853 3 1 87 27986
HZE2013E12A31A1LEE  Yearended 31 December 2013
ERAFE Opening net book amount B 2307 7 853 m i 8 27,986
e Additions - - 18 78 i - 3% 907
2l Transfers 113 169 - - - - (582) -
HE Disposals - (166) - 0 - - - (173)
NEEE Depreciation charge (1316) (383) (366) 33) (116) ) - [255%)
EREmFE Closing net book amount 2558 1,987 804 51 262 i - %6
R2013E12A318 At31 December 2013
KA Cost 7.9 354 30% 27 612 109 - 35
ZiiE Accumulated depreciation G362 (155 223)  (21%) (350) 1] - s
FRYE Net hook amount 20558 1,987 804 531 22 i - 5164
BZ201451283181LEE  Yearended 31 December 2014
FNERTE Opening net book amount 2,558 1987 804 531 %2 /) - %164
e Additions - = 3367 25 19 1,150 - 480
HE Disposals - 8) (26) - - - - (34)
NEEE Depreciation charge (1326) (335) (744) (280) (115) (99) - (28%)
FRERTE Closing net book amount 1.3 1,644 3401 516 166 1073 71
R2014512A318 At31 December 2014
KA Cost 790 353 5,884 2991 631 1,259 - m
2itiE Accumulated depreciation (6688  (1879)  (2483)  (247) (465 (186) - (14176)
FRYE Net hook amount 2,23 1,644 3,401 516 166 1013 - B3

EHERIEMBERNERRAR | —T-MFERE
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15 B/REE

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

AREBRAAT Group and Company
B
Computer
software
#2013F181H At 1 January 2013
DN Cost 648
Rt Accumulated amortisation (111)
BRERE Net book amount 537
HZE2013F12831BLLEE Year ended 31 December 2013
FYEREFE Opening net book amount 537
BiHER Amortisation charge (129)
FRIEEFE Closing net book amount 408
#2013F12H31H At 31 December 2013
DN Cost 648
RETEEH Accumulated amortisation (240)
BREFE Net book amount 408
HZ2014F12A31HLLEE Year ended 31 December 2014
FHREFE Opening net book amount 408
NE Additions 84
BIHE Amortisation charge (145)
FRIEAFE Closing net book amount 347
120145128318 At 31 December 2014
(DN Cost 732
ZETHEH Accumulated amortisation (385)
BRERE Net book amount 347

BIEENBHCREERERP T

BB

Amortisation of the intangible assets has been charged to
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement.
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16 RHEARKRE -—ZFAQF 16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - THE

COMPANY
M12831H
As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
TR AT E Investments at cost
— 3k Emktn — unlisted shares 101,515 101,515
M A R FHIB IR MIRESS - The details of the subsidiaries are set out in note 33.
17 RERHETHEMITA 17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
AEE Group
BERK
W RE
Loans and
receivables
7420145128318 At 31 December 2014
IRGEEEABRNEE Assets as per consolidated balance sheet
B 5 K E A EUEIE Trade and other receivables 331,925
ReRRE&EEER Cash and cash equivalents 239,557
BRHRE Restricted cash 10,123
wat Total 581,605
b7 Ei- )oY
FTEN
=L
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
JIRGEEEEBRNERE Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet
EEN Borrowings 75,250
B 5 I H e 30E (M E(a)) Trade and other payables (note (a)) 51,864
st Total 127,114
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17 BRERESHNETMI A @) 17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)
AERE(E) Group (Continued)
BN
M IE
Loans and
receivables
R2013%F12A31H At 31 December 2013
JIRGEEEEBRNEE Assets as per consolidated balance sheet
B 5 Rk E M EUGRIR Trade and other receivables 315,333
RekRE&EEER Cash and cash equivalents 82,678
ERHIE2 Restricted cash 25,574
Hat Total 423,585
TR SEAK AN
=R
TRAE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
IRGEEEABRNEE Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet
=5 Borrowings 46,544
B 5 K E M pE T R0A (FY E(a) Trade and other payables (note (a)) 88,931
#at Total 135,475
AAT Company
ERR
ElRE
Loans and
receivables
R2014%12A31H At 31 December 2014
IREEEBRNEE Assets as per balance sheet
B 5 Rk E WG IE Trade and other receivables 280,953
ReENMReEMEER Cash and cash equivalents 224,573
ERHIE2 Restricted cash 10,123
wat Total 515,649
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17 BRERESHNETMI A @) 17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)
RKAT(4) Company (Continued)
RS R A
FTEM
SRaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
IREEEBRNER Liabilities as per balance sheet
EEN Borrowings 50,000
B 5 K E A IR (M7 () Trade and other payables (note (a)) 55,514
wst Total 105,514
Ba Kk
FEU R IE
Loans and
receivables
720135128318 At 31 December 2013
INEEEBRNEE Assets as per balance sheet
B 5 K E A IR Trade and other receivables 283,067
ReRRE&EEER Cash and cash equivalents 24,535
BREIEE Restricted cash 25,574
wst Total 333,176
R HRK AN
=R
ERMEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
IREEEBRNEE Liabilities as per balance sheet
R Borrowings 30,000
B 5 N A fE 7E (B 7)) Trade and other payables (note (a)) 82,514
wst Total 112,514
BIE - Note:

(a) TEEEMBENTE  BRNEERIREERE () Excluding other taxes payable, employee benefits payable and provision for quality

P B -

warranty expenses.
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18 EZ RHEMEBWRIEA

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AEE Group
M12831H
As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
Z 5 el kI8 (B EE(b)) Trade receivables (note (b))
— BB 5 (B7E32(b) — Related parties (note 32(b)) 1,543 1,543
—%=h — Third parties 251,996 239,352
253,539 240,895
o B S ENTIE R ERE Less: allowance for impairment of trade receivables (23,324) (45,201)
B 5 IR S Trade receivables — net 230,215 195,694
FEUZRIE (M7 (a) Notes receivable (note (a)) 101,357 119,400
Hib U RIE-F=H Other receivables — third parties 353 239
i IR B — B S TE Less: non-current portion — trade receivables (27,000) -
304,925 315,333
PN Company
M12A31H
As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
E 5 el kI8 (B EE (b)) Trade receivables (note (b))
— BB 5 (F7E32(b)) — Related parties (note 32(b)) 12 12
—MEB AT — A subsidiary 70,901 109,444
=5 —Third parties 157,511 70,757
228,424 180,213
B S EWIERERE Less: allowance for impairment of trade receivables (17,315) (2,933)
B oI Ig 558 Trade receivables — net 211,109 177,280
JFEU 4% (i 3E(a)) Notes receivable (note (a)) 61,607 105,575
JE Y% 2, Dividend receivable 8,000 -
Hu U RIE-F=H Other receivables — third parties 237 212
o IEREE Y — B S e EIE Less: non-current portion — trade receivables (20,435) -
260,518 283,067
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18 EZREMEWRIE ) 18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

BT Notes:

(a) REB N AN EWZIEBIRRITEE ZIEN (a) Notes receivable of the Group and the Company include bank acceptance notes and
RAEAREE B—MREEBRHENEAR commercial acceptance notes, and are usually settled within six months from the date
HE o of issue.

(b) BEEFRENBLOERAREUTMAE®ENE (b))  Apart from a portion of the contract sum retained by customers to cover the Group's

ERFLIN AEBUELHESRRNRES quality warranty, the Group does not grant credit terms to customers in the sales
BFEEH - R2014F12A318 + EZEIGK contract. Included in trade receivables are such retained sums of approximately
EHREZESRE B ARES0,498,0007t(2013 RMB80,498,000 (2013: RMB80,562,000) representing 31.7% of trade receivables as
F : AR¥80,562,0007T) * 18 5 EKFKIE of 31 December 2014 (2013: 33.9%). These are due for collection upon the expiry
31.7% (20134 : 33.9%) - REERZH(—K of quality warranty period (which is usually 12 months from the acceptance by the
AEFBRUEERT12ME A ) fEmEEI 2 ER - customer of the equipment).

RIEAZE ZEWFRENERB NS4S  Aging analysis based on recognition date of the gross trade receivables

HERMBRROTT - at the respective balance sheet dates are as follows:
AEE Group
M12831H
As at 31 December
20145 20135
2014 2013
15 A Up to 1 year 132,678 120,262
1824 1-2 years 67,153 52,100
PERE:S 2-3 years 21,605 58,918
HBiE3F Over 3 years 32,103 9,615
253,539 240,895
ZNN| Company
M12831H
As at 31 December
20145 20134F
2014 2013
1R Upto 1 year 178,856 155,735
1224 1-2 years 31,242 3,697
2E3F 2-3 years 684 17,705
BiE3F Over 3 years 17,642 3,076
228,424 180,213
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18 BEZRHMEWFIE ) 18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

REE

AT B HE W R E B B 5 e UK IR
TyER BRI BN S R AR B B AL R P
B - 258 5 RUGRIAN K EE D470

Group

The following trade receivables were past due but not impaired, and

related to a number of independent customers with no recent history

of default. The aging analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

I
M12A31H
As at 31 December
20145 20135
2014 2013
BHIFLAA Past due within 1 year 52,189 48,416
BENZE2F Past due for 1 to 2 years 11,821 34,285
BER = 3F Past due for 2 to 3 years 670 13,906
BHA3EF A Past due over 3 years 1,445 -
66,125 96,607
PN/ Company
M12A318
As at 31 December
20145 20134F
2014 2013
BENFIAR Past due within 1 year 49,863 25,483
papti ke Past due for 1 to 2 years 5,488 16,811
HERZE3F Past due for 2 to 3 years 5 3,968
BEASEFLA E Past due over 3 years 323 -
55,679 46,262

2B ERDRER E S RUGKIBENT

Trade receivables wholly or partially impaired are as follow:

rE Group
M12A31H
As at 31 December
201445 20134
2014 2013
B 5 FEWEIE Trade receivables 50,289 125,845
BB Allowance for impairment (23,324) (45,201)
B 5 EWGRIEFEE Trade receivables — net 26,965 80,644

WUXI SUNLIT SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014




B3 0 R W ik
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRIERBFTIE - BRIFTEEEEEAARETICHR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

18 B K HMEWFIE ) 18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
¥/ Company
M12831H
As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
5 W FkIE Trade receivables 17,430 20,122
BB Allowance for impairment (17,315) (2,933)
B ol Ig 58 Trade receivables — net 115 17,189

ZECRENE ZRUFIENRER ST The aging analysis of these impaired trade receivables are as follows:

T
FiN=S Group
M12A31H
As at 31 December
20144 20134
2014 2013
1R Upto 1 year 6,390 58,207
1224 1-2 years 27,164 35,413
2E34F 2-3 years 10,693 24,555
FRMBIF Over 3 years 6,042 7,670
50,289 125,845
¥/ Company
M12831H
As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
1R Upto 1 year 96 17,189
15826 1-2 years 17,189 -
283F 2-3 years -~ 175
HBAE3F QOver 3 years 145 2,758
17,430 20,122
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18 ESNEMEWFE
B REWGTERREREEE T

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements of allowance for impairment of trade receivables are as

follows:

AEE Group
BZE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
READ At the beginning of year 45,201 34,019
EHNBIE RS Additional allowance for impairment 22,527 22,614
R E R D Reversal of allowance for impairment (44,284) (11,154)
R A AT Us [0 Y e Uk ZoE Receivables written off as uncollectible (120) (278)
RER At the end of year 23,324 45,201
AN Company
BZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20144 20134
2014 2013
AEH At the beginning of year 2,933 5,594
BINRERE Additional allowance for impairment 17,309 54
BB B E Reversal of allowance for impairment (2,807) (2,437)
UL A AT Uk (B ) FE U R TR Receivables written off as uncollectible (120) (278)
RER At the end of year 17,315 2,933

FEUGRIB R BB EM R L REBRESFT A The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have
Wk & [ EWEBRE (BERRE ), %  been included in “(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for impairment
HBIR(HIEES) - S ABEIRAFKIE—M  of receivables” in the income statement (note 8). Amounts charged
TE 78 B RE U Bl E A 38 & IR URL ©

to the allowance account are generally written off, when there is no
expectation of recovering additional cash.

B NEMEWGFBEMNEMIERIAEEBY The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain
TEEERBEEE - impaired assets.
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18 EZREMEWRIE ) 18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
B REMEURRENAFEEERME The fair values of trade and other receivables approximate their
BHEHE - carrying amounts.

EE S REMEKZIBYIAARREST Al of the trade and other receivables were denominated in RMB.
(=R

RE B AR R AEERK D L The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
BRI EW R ERNEEE - AN&EBEY  carrying amounts of each class of receivable mentioned above. The
AT R mIEER - Group does not hold any collateral as security.

19 FAMARIE

19 PREPAYMENTS

AEE Group
M12A31H
As at 31 December
20144 20134F
2014 2013
REEE Current assets
BERERMBHTENFE Prepayments for purchase of raw materials 374 2,240
TR ER R E A IR Prepayments for value added tax and other taxes 11,489 23,498
TEfT FTAERER S Prepayments for listing-related expenses - 10,517
Hith Others 164 510
12,027 36,765
RAFE] Company
M12A31H
As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
REBEE Current assets
BEREMBOENFIE Prepayments for purchase of raw materials 3713 23,192
- =V:] — Third parties 313 1,427
NG — Subsidiaries = 21,765
TEFHEER R A I8 Prepayments for value added tax and other taxes 10,957 11,651
TafS EmAEEER S Prepayments for listing-related expenses - 10,517
Hth Others M 337
11,371 45,697
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20 FE& 20 INVENTORIES
AEE Group
M12831H
As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
B Raw materials 21,959 22,134
RS Work in progress 39,203 78,270
BURY G Finished goods 17,531 70,500
78,693 170,904

HE2014F12A3NBILEEE - BR A
X Rt ATSEERANINFER AL R
AR #155,278,0007T (20134 : AR
122,164,0007T) °

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the cost of inventories
recognised as expense and included in “cost of sales” amounted to
approximately RMB 155,278,000 (2013: RMB122,164,000).

RKAF] Company
M12A31H
As at 31 December
20144 20134
2014 2013
EME Raw materials 21,959 16,798
RS Work in progress 40,434 44,563
K Finished goods 18,374 67,661
80,767 129,022

ARANER M EEKGBBRERETH
BARRENIAR - EPARBIFAE
B A B4 T B A R R — AR AHE -
SZARERANED R A AR -
SAREBNREERA TR o

The Company’s work in progress and finished goods include items
purchased from certain subsidiaries for which the cost to the Company
includes a normal profit to the subsidiaries. Such unrealised profit
has been eliminated upon consolidation, resulting in a lower carrying
amount to the Group.
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21 ReRREEHEER

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AEE Group
M12831H
As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
RIREFERE Cash at bank and on hand 230,958 61,027
GHRIRTTIE R Short-term bank deposits 18,722 47,225
249,680 108,252
B BRHIRE (FsEa) Less: restricted cash (note (a)) (10,123) (25,574)
RE&ERREEEEB (W3ED) Cash and cash equivalents (note (b)) 239,557 82,678
¥/ Company
M12831H
As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
RITNFEERS Cash at bank and on hand 218,974 44,678
RERRITER Short-term bank deposits 15,722 5,431
234,696 50,109
B BREIIRS (M5 a) Less: restricted cash (note (a)) (10,123) (25,574)
ReERREEEER Cash and cash equivalents 224,573 24,535
MI3E - Notes:

(a) DAREHENBRGIBSIEERGRITERZE () The restricted cash which is denominated in RMB represented bank deposits pledged to
BENEBRE S ORITER(HIE25) o banks as security for issuance of notes payable (note 25).
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21 BHEeNHEEZEEEHR (&) 21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
KREBEARNTNEES RIELESILT  The Group and Company's cash and cash balance are denominated in

HIEHEHE - the following currencies:
AEE Group
M12831H
As at 31 December
20144 20134
2014 2013
AR RMB 66,101 82,678
BT HK$ 173,456 -
239,557 82,678
AKAT Company
M12831H
As at 31 December
20144 20134
2014 2013
AR RMB 51,117 24,535
BT HKS 173,456 -
224,573 24,535

22 BARRGEE

22 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

®12831H
As at 31 December

20145 20134
2014 2013

BRHEBE ARETR | BH&E ARETT
Number Number
of shares RMB'000 of shares RMB'000

SERE Authorised:
EREEAREITHE®EE  Ordinary shares of RMB$1 each 128,000,000 128,000 | 96,000,000 96,000
112
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22 BRARK B EE s 22 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (continued)
TR BT REUE Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:
HBR
e
i (A RA RIVRE 5
Number
of ordinary Share Share
Note shares capital premium Total
(shares)
R2013F1818 R At 1 January and 31 December
12A31H 2013 96,000,000 96,000 191,085 287,085
AR EEEA AET Issue of ordinary shares to public
T equity holders (a) 32,000,000 32,000 163,665 195,655
% 10 B TR AR Share issuance costs (a) - - (43,276) (43,276)
®2014%12A31H At 31 December 2014 128,000,000 128,000 311,464 439,464
A Note:
(a) R2014F 11 B11H » RARIRERT7.7248 LK (a) On 11 November 2014, the Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock
B8 3£532,000,000% FAXEE A R 1 THIFT Exchange by way of share offer of 32,000,000 new shares of RMB1 each at a price of
B - U REE R ER B o BRSREORE HK$7.72 per share. The total cash consideration, before issuance cost, was approximately
BATHAR) #9/5247,040,00075 7T (FHE W AR HK$247,040,000 (equivalent to RMB195,655,000). The underwriting commissions
195,655,0007T) © ‘B 8H{AE A R E M B {5 K FE S and other capitalised issuance costs paid and payable amounting to approximately
AT AL B AR EEA3,276,0007T  5HA RMB43,276,000 has been debited to the share premium.

ffn i (®

23 REBER—XQF 23 RETAINED EARNINGS - COMPANY
VI N/NE|
Company
®2013F181A At 1 January 2013 1,135
FRFE Profit for the year 102,051
S AT R (M 5E24(a)) Transfer to statutory reserves (note 24(a)) (10,052)
RS T2HS (H5E24(b) Transfer to safety fund (note 24(b)) (1,530)
720135128314 At 31 December 2013 91,604
12014518118 At 1 January 2014 91,604
FRFE Profit for the year 133,296
S AT R (M 5E24(a)) Transfer to statutory reserves (note 24(a)) (13,174)
B2 E S (MsE24(b) Transfer to safety fund (note 24(b)) (1,557)
TR E Dividend declared (120,000)
7420145128318 At 31 December 2014 90,169
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23 REEN-EXQT @ 23 RETAINED EARNINGS - COMPANY (continued)

RATER AL FE

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

HZE2014F12A31BILEE » K27 For the year ended 31 December 2014, the profits attributable to
HE ABEFNERARNTGTB®/RAAN  owners of the Company were dealt with in the financial statements of
BRIE - £%H4 A ARE133,296,0007T  the Company to the extent of approximately RMB133,296,000 (2013:

(20134 : AFR¥102,051,0007T) ° RMB102,051,000).
24 f#iE 24 RESERVES
AEE Group

BARRE EERE BHRE HRET

Capital Statutory Special
reserves reserves reserves Total

20131818 At 1 January 2013 17,130 8,930 2,525 28,585
B SR R (MREa) Transfer to statutory reserves (note (a)) - 10,052 - 10,052
EEET2ES (WD) Transfer to safety fund (note (b)) - - 2,265 2,265
"20135F12H31H At 31 December 2013 17,130 18,982 4,790 40,902
720141818 At1 January 2014 17,130 18,982 4,790 40,902
B S T R (BRE(a) Transfer to statutory reserves (note (a)) = 13,174 = 13,174
s a7 2 H e (D) Transfer to safety fund (note (b)) - - 2,184 2184
RS EE (BMTaE(c) Contribution by shareholders (note (c)) 507 = = 507
"20145F12H31H At 31 December 2014 17,637 32,156 6,974 56,767
ZNNE Company

BEARRNE EEREE  BRIEE Bt

Capital Statutory Special
reserves reserves reserves Total

"20135FE1 818 At 1 January 2013 37,589 5,390 1,686 44,665
B R R (B RE(a) Transfer to statutory reserves (notes (a)) - 10,052 - 10,052
ERE T2 ES (MI5ED) Transfer to safety fund (notes (b)) - - 1,530 1,530
"20135F12H31H At 31 December 2013 37,589 15,442 3,216 56,247
A20145F1818 At 1 January 2014 37,589 15,442 3,216 56,247
RS E TR E (W5 a) Transfer to statutory reserves (notes (a)) = 13,174 = 13,174
EEREL2HEE (MFED) Transfer to safety fund (notes (b)) - = 1,557 1,557
% 5RE & (B7E(e) Contribution by shareholders (note (c)) 367 = = 367
720145128318 At 31 December 2014 37,956 28,616 4,773 71,345
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24 FE 24 RESERVES (continued)

BT Notes:

(a) RIEFEBREERERURRPRKIONE () In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and the Articles of
AR(BIF B EERE])MAEREZRMA - Association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC (the “PRC Operational Entities"),
HEEEEWAKKHETNTFBRENTE the PRC Operational Entities are required to appropriate 10% of their annual net
WH(RPEGFERET)MI10%BREET profit, after offsetting any prior years' losses as determined under the PRC accounting
BHNESR - REA A DIRAFAET - WEE standards, to the statutory surplus reserve fund before distributing any net profit. When
BB AESNEREINZSPREETEEM the balance of the statutory surplus reserve fund reaches 50% of the registered capital
EARHI50% + AT i AR SR B IS R (R Al — 2 of the PRC Operational Entities, any further transfer is at the discretion of shareholders.
MER AT RABRAES T ARKHETFBE The statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to offset prior years' losses, if any, and
() » WAIER b AFMER - R AREET may be capitalised as registered capital, provided that the remaining balance of the
EREEBBABEERTEONEMEERD statutory surplus reserve fund after such issue is no less than 25% of registered capital.
25% °

(b) BERRLZELEELEBREEARBN2012484 (b) Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the State of Administration of Work Safety
METER  FOEEEREBBRAN—TEL in 2012, certain group entities are required to set aside an amount to a safety fund at
BlEALZE2ES - EEES T ARNRERRELE certain percentage of revenue. The fund can be used for improvement of safety for
Z% AT AERRESIR - REARERX machinery manufacturing, and are not available for distribution to shareholders. Upon
% SER2ESERESHNEERBEF - incurring safety expenditure, an equivalent amount is transferred from safety fund to

retained earnings.

(c) 2014528 - AEBHRETERBEFERF (0 In February 2014, the Group filed and settled pension funds of approximately

AEEHEBEHRFFEIEERRESHA RMB507,000 for certain employees who have left the Group in prior years. According
R#507,0007T  MR1K N5 [ BL5R 1258 5t A4 Kok to the agreement between the Group and Mr. Zhang Degiang and Mr. Zhang Degang
EREE(FEIRERSB ) (AAEENEER (collectively, known as “Zhang Brothers”), who are the major shareholders and founders
RMEIHA) 2B HE - REABRERRIK of the Group, Zhang Brothers agreed to reimburse the settlement of pension fund to
ECHNEERARERETEN - RRIEENZE the Group. Such reimbursement by the shareholders was regarded as shareholders’
BENRARRHUAEENTERIEHEESHA contribution to the Group and was accounted for as a reserve movement.

BE o
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25 BESNHEMENSFIE 25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
AEE Group
M12A318
As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
AN Trade payables 12,870 30,073
FETE & (Mt H(a) Notes payable (note(a)) 19,886 49,006
VI - R MR BRI EN R Payables for property, plant and equipment 5,350 4,446
HibERTEE Other taxes payable 2,085 1,704
EEERT Employee benefits payable 2,548 2,671
HERNERS Quality warranty deposits from suppliers 4,070 4170
FERFLE Interest payable 121 72
BIRMAZBE Provision for quality warranty expenses 4n 478
S EmRX Listing expenses payables 8,042 -
HAth Others 1,525 1,164
56,968 93,784
AKATF Company
M12A31H
As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
B HENFIE Trade payables 22,433 24,818
——FEKME AR — A subsidiary 14,913 1,298
—H=h —Third parties 1,520 23,520
JERTZEE (M 3E@a) Notes payable (note(a)) 19,886 52,433
M -~ BB KR EEER IR Payables for property, plant and equipment 59 75
Hih A TIA Other taxes payable 806 508
FEfRHE EREF Employee benefits payable 2,292 2,121
HEENERE Quality warranty deposits from suppliers 4,070 4,170
FERTFILE Interest payable 78 50
BIRF T B Provision for quality warranty expenses m 478
FER ETRI S Listing expenses payables 8,042 -
Hitb Others 946 968
59,083 85,621
BIE - Notes:
(a) FERT IR AE IR B3R &7 R (M 5E21) - (a) The notes payable are secured over restricted cash deposits (note 21).
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25 B REAMENTIE®) 25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
B S REMNFUBRERR ST ¢ The ageing analysis of the trade payables was as follows:
AEE Group
M12A31H
As at 31 December
20144 20134F
2014 2013
1R Upto 1 year 9,833 26,520
15224 1-2 years 957 1,715
283 2-3 years 692 1,838
3ELAE Over 3 years 1,388 -
12,870 30,073
VNN Company
M12H31H
As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
1R Upto 1 year 20,755 23,491
15826 1-2 years 824 955
2E3F 2-3 years 681 372
IFEM L QOver 3 years 173 -
22,433 24,818
26 FAWEFFNIE 26 ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS
AEE Group
M12A31H
As at 31 December
20144 20134
2014 2013
TR PR Advances from customers
— B85 5 (P9 3E32(b) — Related parties (note 32 (b)) = 59
—F=5 — Third parties 42117 123,211
42117 123,270
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26 FEWEFFIE S

26 ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS (Continued)

¥/ Company
M12831H
As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
B R FFRIA Advances from customers
— BB 7 (B7E32(b) — Related parties (note 32(b)) = 59
] — Third parties 34,927 87,647
34,927 87,706
27 fB&X 27 BORROWINGS
rEE Group
M12A31H
As at 31 December
20144 20134
2014 2013
BNER Current;
— BEPRITEIR(HFEHE) — Secured bank borrowing (note (a)) 25,250 16,544
—\EIR R TIE X — Unsecured bank borrowing 50,000 30,000
75,250 46,544
AAT Company
M12A31H
As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
BNER Current;
—EEPRITER — Unsecured bank borrowing 50,000 30,000
M3 - Note:

(a) MN2014F 12 A318 - RITERDARE
25,250,000 7t (2013 F 12 A31H + AR
16,544,0007T ) F 2N 58 [B] ) £ b {55 F A VR4 4 (PR
F$13) -

(a) As at 31 December 2014, the bank borrowing of approximately RMB25,250,000 (31
December 2013: RMB16,544,000) was secured over the land use rights of the Group

(note 13).
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27 B
FEMEFHYERFENT -

27 BORROW'NGS (Continued)

The weighted average effective interest rates (per annum) were as
follows:

M12H31H
As at 31 December

20145
2014

20134
2013

RITREN

Bank borrowings

5.78%

6.05%

AEBARREROESRENT

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

M12H31H
As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
EE : Fixed rate:
—R—FREIH — Expiring within one year 40,237 43,140

R—FREHNREBFERE
2014 F ZE A HIETTER - O &8
R E AN AR ESE TR ERR S

AEBWRITIEFTOAAREE -

BIEASRITIE R A FEREREEMN
o TARTENPZELTERX -

28 IRIEFTISH
#EH
EAEFEHARA T

=

<

The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities subject to

review at various dates during 2014. The other facilities have been
arranged to finance the proposed expansion of the Group's activities.

The Group's bank borrowings were denominated in RMB.

The fair value of current bank borrowing approximated its carrying
amount, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Group

The analysis of deferred income tax assets is as follows:

M12H31H
As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
EEFRBHEE Deferred income tax assets:
— AR B121E A & ] — 1o be recovered after more than 12 months 3,890 11,007
— B F2{E A ik el — to be recovered within 12 months 1,691 12,328
5,581 23,335
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28 EEFEBH 28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
REME (5) Group(Continued)
BIEFTISMEES BT The movement in deferred income tax assets is as follows:
BRHER
BBRAN
HiEHE
Temporary

difference on

RERE KE2BRFE  recognition

Allowance  Unrealised of sales and Hity @t
for impairment profit related costs Others Total

R2013E181H At 1 January 2013 8,505 2,572 10,489 122 21,688
A/ (NE)aR Credited/(charged) to

the income statement 2,502 (795) (42) (18) 1,647
R2013F12831H8 At 31 December 2013 11,007 1777 10,447 104 23,335
(ng),/ AR (Charged)/credited to

the income statement (7,117) (877) (9,827) 67 (17,754)
M2014F12831A8 At 31 December 2014 3,890 900 620 m 5,581

MEMRLHEAARERMFEEIHMEA Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-
WMIEMNZ - DIt B EEA&EERIEIE  forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
FIEMEE - 8122014128310 1% through future taxable profits is probable. During the year ended 31
B AREEVES ALK R E  December 2014, the Group did not recognised deferred income tax
R ABEIEY ARKES438,0007 assets of approximately RMB860,000 (2013: RMB662,000) for the
(2013%F : AR®2648,0007T) #E:Z#E tax losses of approximately RMB3,438,000 (2013: RMB2,648,000)
EFFE I EE 4 AR #S60,0007T (2013  that can be carried forward against future taxable income. As at
F: AR¥662,0007T) ° 32014128 31 December 2014, the unrecognised tax losses amounting to
310 kR EEBARK791,000 RMB791,000, RMB985,000, RMB871,000 and RMB791,000 will
7T - AR¥985 00077 + ARMS71,000 expirein 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 respectively.

TR AR791,0007T 5 B 2016 F -

20174F ~ 2018 220194 2| #f -
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28 EZEFTER e 28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
¥/ Company
BREFTEMEESTUOT ¢ The analysis of deferred income tax assets is as follows:
M12A31H
As at 31 December
20144 2013
2014 2013
EEFBHEE - Deferred income tax assets:
— R ERE121E B 1 U] —to be recovered after more than 12 months 2,597 440
— R 12{E B ik El — to be recovered within 12 months 1,007 1,369
3,604 1,809
RIEFTESMEEZEUWT ¢ The movement in deferred income tax assets is as follows:
RIHE R
BEKAD
=S
Temporary
difference on
RERE KERME  recognition
Allowance Unrealised  of sales and Hith 4=t
for impairment profit  related costs Others Total
®2013F181A8 At 1 January 2013 1,399 956 106 121 2,582
(n8)/FAkEE (Charged)/credited to
the income statement (959) 265 (42) (37) (773)
R2013%12831H At 31 December 2013 440 1,221 64 84 1,809
A/ (B Kk Credited/(charged) to
the income statement 2,157 (632) 195 75 1,795
R2014%12H31H8 At 31 December 2014 2,597 589 259 159 3,604
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29 KE 29 DIVIDENDS
HZ12A31ALLEE
Year ended 31 December
20144 20134
2014 2013
BRI B FRRERAR ARE1257T  Paid special dividend of RMB1.25 (2013: nil)
(20134 : ) per ordinary share 120,000 -
FORARHA B FA L @AY A R#0.157T  Proposed final dividend of RMB0.15 (2013 nil)
(20134 : 42) per ordinary share 19,200 —
139,200 -

BIEEHA2014F815BMBREAS
RER - ARFEERRESBRARE
1.257C - R2014F BB EAARK
120,000,0007T(20134F : #&) o

RAAREEEERZEEE2014F12 A31
HIEFENREAERARKO015T
B B 4858 A A R #19,200,0007T @ MHEZE
FFRR SRR 201656 5198 BITH R RIASF
AE LHER - FAEE - ZEMHB®R
M AR R EORAR S ©

HZE2014F M2013F 12 A31HIEFED

(AR BB RIEEAD TERRRA
W SR R o

WUX

Pursuant to a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting dated 15 August
2014, a dividend of RMB1.25 per share was declared by the Company.
The dividend paid in 2014 was RMB120,000,000 (2013: nil).

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014 of
RMBO0.15 per share, amounting to a total dividend of RMB19,200,000,
has been proposed by the Board of Directors of the Company and
is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting to be held on 19 June 2015. These financial statements have
not reflected this dividend payable.

The aggregate amounts of the dividends paid during the year ended
31 December 2014 and 2013 have been disclosed in the consolidated
income statement in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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30 REMBRE 30 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
BRATEHATAEELSESESMEEE  Reconciliations of profit before income tax to cash generated from
mr operations were as follow:
BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20145 20135
2014 2013
RR AT 48B4 A0 A 8 Profit before income tax 140,040 153,461
HATSIBIERE Adjustments for:
M - BE REEITE (HiE14) — Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(note 14) 3,669 3,152
— - Hb {5 P e B L Y 6 — Amortisation of land used rights and intangible
(Ft7E135215) assets (notes 13 and 15) 994 924
— B S REWGBRE (B #ED) %% - (Reversal of allowance)/allowance for impairment of
(FfFE18) trade receivables(note 18) (21,757) 11,460
—HEWME  WMERFEN(UE), B8 - (Gains)/losses on disposal of property,
(BF5E7) plant and equipment (note 7) (52) 2
— WA (MFE10) — Finance expense (note 10) 2,840 1,825
—[EH =58 — Foreign exchange difference 674 -
EEESEBANKSERE Operating profit before changes in
working capital: 126,408 170,824
EEESHE Changes in working capital
—-FE — Inventories 92,211 34,424
—JBNRIE — Prepayments 14,221 (3,720)
— 85 KEMEWFTE — Trade and other receivables 1,885 (86,810)
—E 5 hEMENFIE — Trade and other payables (44,185) 26,786
—FEIREF A — Advances from customers (81,153) (94,637)
REMBES Cash generated from operations 109,387 46,867
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(BRIERBFTIE - BRIFTEEEEEAARETICHR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

31 &
(a) BEAHEE
REBRBEITHEMRNES

31 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

Bf %k  Capital expenditures contracted at each period end not provided for in

TEBERE AR T - the consolidated financial statements were as follows:
R12831H
As at 31 December
201445 20134
2014 2013
W - RN Property, plant and equipment 19,423 33,290

(b) EEHERGE

ARG EHER FHRRAE

(b) Operating leasing commitments

(K The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

ENFAT ¢ operating leases are as follows:
M12H318
As at 31 December
20145 20135
2014 2013
17 No later than 1 year 3 233

32 BHLIRS
(a) BARBEA B ERBREBE

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Names and relationships with related parties

REEHRRKALBRRFELLTRLZE  The Group is ultimately controlled by Zhang Brothers and Ms. Zhang
H - HR2014F12 A3 HEEFAARL  Jinghua, who held 60.34% direct equity interest in the Company as of

Al HER60.34% °

31 December 2014.

AT AR REZE2014F%20135F12 431 The following companies are related parties of the Group which had
BIEFEMRAEEBEA L H#IT  balances and/or transactions with the Group during the years ended

R ERERTT -
124

31 December 2014 and 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRIERBFTIE - BRIFTEEEEEAARETICHR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

32 BEBMAERZ @ 32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) BEEBANEBBERBER® (a) Names and relationships with related parties (Continued)
BB L &8 EAKEEF
Name of related parties Relationship with the Group
BIEG— MR E AR AR (TS IERE 1) () (RIEE NG RERGEREF—BES
—H R AR A R])
Hefei De Yi New Materials Investment Company Limited (“Hefei Investment”) Mr. Zhang Degang is one of the directors
note (i)) (formerly known as Changzhou De Yi New Materials Technology
Company Limited
LR R EEH AR AR (DIEFR]) (M) BIERES —fHME AR
Jiangsu Li Ao New Material Technology Company Limited A subsidiary of Hefei Investment
("Jiangsu Li Ao”) (note (i))
SIEGE—MERIRBR AR ([ SRR (i) BREREN—HMBAR]
Hefei De Yi New Materials Technology Company Limited A subsidiary of Hefei Investment

(“Hefei Technology”) (note (i))

(i) FiiEREEFENER  EEESASHE (i) The entities shown above do not have official English names and their Chinese names
P ZTEBER Y - EH2ERSE - have been translated into English, for reference only, by the Directors on a best effort
basis.
(b) EHREBAMNEARS (b) Significant transactions with related parties

RELE2014% % 2013F 12 B31 H It &  During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the following
B AEBHEBEHTETT THRS o transactions were carried out between the Group and related parties.
RNATBERE BT 5 R ESE In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the related party
ROtk g B B R BRRL 5 2 Rgpg  transactions were carried out in the normal course of business and

FRRETT o at terms negotiated between the Group and the respective related
parties.
BZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
) HESEmM (i) Sales of goods
— L& HR — Jiangsu Li Ao = 27
— AR — Hefei Technology 50 139
50 166
iy TEEEEwMHE (i) Key management compensation
—I&  #eREa — Wages, salaries and bonuses 2,565 2,481
- B EEEZS — Welfare and pension 496 3N
3,061 2,852
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRIERBFTIE - BRIFTEEEEEAARETICHR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

32 AR ®) 32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
EHEGIE T YA B Balances with related parties
M12831H
As at 31 December
20145 20134
2014 2013
) EZEkz0E (i)  Trade receivables
rEE Group
B S RUGRE ¢ Trade receivables:
— &G ERE — Hefei Technology 1,533 1,533
—AIERE — Hefei Investment 10 10
1,543 1,543
RAH Company
B S RUGE ¢ Trade receivables:
— &R — Hefei Technology 2 2
—AIERE — Hefei Investment 10 10
12 12
M12A31H
As at 31 December
2014 20134
2014 2013
iy FEWERPZUAE (i) Advances from customers
AEBRANT Group and Company
— &R — Hefei Technology - 59

i EREE T maEsb AG B - EIKIE  The above balances with related parties were interest free, unsecured
7 48 [&] 7E S FREARR. o and had no fixed payment terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRIERBFTIE - BRIFTEEEEEAARETICHR) (Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

33 XEMBATMNFE
AR AR AT MR Rl 8 E S

33 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The Company has direct interests in the following subsidiaries:

ROUER
0135123318
FENERER RERERE
Effective 355N ERER
BRIREAR/ interest Effective
A L 4 B B R A R R afEX heldat interestheld FE¥EREEHY
GIED Place of incorporation and Issued and paid up/ 31 December atthe date  Principal activities
Name of company kind of legal entity registered capital 2014 and 2013 of this report  and place of operations
Sanzhi Gongkong the PRC, Limited liability company RMB,000,000 100% 100%  Machinery products manufacture
I HE - BREARA AR1,0000007C and trading in the PRC
EPEETRRERRE
rES
Jiangsu Sunlit the PRC, Limited liability company RMB5,000,000 100% 100%  Machinery products trading in
&R NE PE - AREEAT AR 5,000,007 the PRC
EPEETRHERES
Haisheng Software the PRC, Limited liability company RMB,080,000 100% 100%  Software development and
BB HE - BREARA AR1,0800007C software patent rights trading
in the PRC
EREETRIRER
BHEFIRES
Wuxi Shangda the PRC, Limited liability company RMB63,000,000 100% 100%  Machinery products manufacture
mHrE HE - BREARA AR 630000007 and trading in the PRC

EREETEHERRE
k&S
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FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BZ12A31A8LFE
Year ended 31 December
20144 20135 20124 201148
2014 2013 2012 2011
AE¥TT | ARETT ARETT ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
WA Revenue 314,298 318,948 323,597 465,667
KR Operating profit 141,862 153,347 149,685 142,914
TSR Income tax expense 28,438 22,469 25,257 33,192
FARFE Profit for the year 111,602 130,992 125,269 110,097
FRAN BIRRFELS Earnings per share attributable
FREF to shareholders of
(LAFBRARBTI)R)  the Company for the year
—EARNEE (expressed in RMB per share)
—Basic and diluted 1.1 1.36 1.30 1.12
E Sy | pe Gross profit margin 48.60% 58.26% 59.75% 45.46%
Y| pe Operating profit margin 45.14% 48.08% 46.26% 30.69%
4 K| & Net profit margin 35.51% 41.07% 38.71% 23.64%
M12A31H
As at 31 December
20144 20135 20124 201148
2014 2013 2012 2011
AR®TR | ARETT ARETRT AR%¥ETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ERBEE Non-current assets 171,734 138,552 104,638 88,358
REEE Current assets 646,986 631,254 577,289 581,512
mERRE Current liabilities 176,248 271,822 314,934 595,089
FREBEE/(BE) Net current assets/(liabilities) 470,738 359,432 262,354 -13,577
WEERRESAE Total assets less current liabilities 642,472 497,984 366,992 74,781
BEFE Net assets 642,472 497,984 366,992 74,781
&7 Capital 128,000 96,000 96,000 15,000
& Reserves 56,767 40,902 28,585 34,537
s Total equity 642,472 497,984 366,992 74,781
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